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GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Members of GRM Overseas Limited will be 
held on Thursday, the 28th September, 2017 at 10.30 A.M. at MH One Resort Hotel Bakoli Alipur, Main G.T. Karnal 
Road Delhi-110036, to transact the following business

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the year 2017 including 
audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement 
for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rohit Garg (DIN: 00673304), who retires by rotation and being eligible 
offers himself for re-appointment

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following Resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with rules made there under, M/s. Vishal Malhotra & Co., Chartered Accountants 
(FRN-012750N), be and is hereby re- appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the 
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, at such remuneration plus goods & service tax and other out of pocket expenses, as may be mutually 
agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors” 
  
SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. Appointment of Mr. Rohit  Garg (DIN: 00673304) as Chairman cum Managing Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an Special 
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and all other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in 
force) and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of Mr. Rohit Garg (DIN: 00673304) as 
Chairman cum Managing Director by the Board of Directors be and is hereby confirmed for a period of three years 
w.e.f. 1st September, 2017, on the terms and conditions as agreed between the Company and Mr. Rohit Garg  
vide employment agreement dated 28th August, 2017 and whose office shall not be liable to retirement by 
rotation.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Employment Agreement executed on 28th August, 2017 between the 
Company and Mr. Rohit Garg, be and is hereby approved. 
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GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to other consents, if any, and in 
accordance with the Employment Agreement executed with Mr. Rohit Garg, the approval of the Company be and 
is hereby accorded to appointment of Mr. Rohit Garg at such remuneration and perquisites as per details below: 

A. Period: Period of appointment is Three Years w.e.f. 1st September, 2017.
B. Salary: the gross Salary will be Rs 2,50,000/-per month including the Perquisites & Allowances
C. Perquisites & Allowances: The following Perquisites & Allowances are included in gross salary 
i. House Rent Allowance: House Rent Allowance in accordance with the rules of the Company.
ii. Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for the appointee and his family subject to a ceiling of one 

month salary in one year.
iii.  Leave Travel Concession: As per rules of the Company.
iv. Club Fees: Fees of club subject to maximum of two clubs. This will not include admission and life 

membership fees.
v.  Personal Accident Insurance: Personal Accident Insurance Cover as applicable in line with rules & policies 

of the Company.
vi. Contribution to Provident Fund: As per Company rules.
vii. Gratuity: As per Company rules subject to maximum of half months salary for each completed year of 

service.
viii.  Encashment of leaves- As per rules of the Company at the end of tenure.

D. General Information:

i. Nature of Industry: Sale of Rice both in India and overseas markets. The company is engaged in the 
business of manufacturing and trading, both Export and Domestic, of rice.

ii. Date of Commencement of Activity: 03rd January, 1995

E. Information about the appointee:

i. Name of the person: Mr. Rohit Garg
ii. Background details: Mr. Rohit Garg is a B.Com and has vast experience relating to rice industry and is 

capable of handling his responsibilities very efficiently. He is managing the day to day affairs of the 
Company with the assistance of the Board of Directors and executives of the Company.

iii. Past remuneration drawn: Rs. 160,000/- per month
iv. Recognition and Awards/Achievements: None
v. Job profile and suitability: Marketing
vi. Remuneration proposed: 250,000/- per month
vii. Relative: Mr. Atul Garg and Mr. Hukam Chand Garg, being relative of Mr. Rohit Garg, Directors are 

interested in the resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to take the 
necessary actions and complete all legal formalities related thereto.’’

5. Appointment of Mr. Atul Garg (DIN: 02380612) as Joint Managing Director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an  
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, 203 and all other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in 
force) and Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of Mr. Atul Garg (DIN: 02380612) as joint 
Managing Director by the Board of Directors be and is hereby confirmed for a period of three years w.e.f. 1st 
September, 2017, on the terms and conditions as agreed between the Company and Mr. Atul Garg  vide 
employment agreement dated 28th August, 2017 and whose office shall not be liable to retirement by rotation.’’

Special
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Employment Agreement executed on 28th August, 2017 between the 
Company and Mr. Atul Garg, be and is hereby approved. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the provisions of Sections 196, 197 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to other consents, if any, and in 
accordance with the Employment Agreement executed with Mr. Atul Garg, the approval of the Company be and is 
hereby accorded to appointment of Mr. Atul Garg at such remuneration and perquisites as per details below: 

A.  Period: Period of appointment is Three Years w.e.f. 1st September, 2017.
B. Salary: the gross Salary will be Rs 2,50,000/-per month including the Perquisites & Allowances
C.  Perquisites & Allowances: The following Perquisites & Allowances are included in gross salary 
i. House Rent Allowance: House Rent Allowance in accordance with the rules of the Company.
ii. Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for the appointee and his family subject to a ceiling of one 

month salary in one year.
iii. Leave Travel Concession: As per rules of the Company.
iv. Club Fees: Fees of club subject to maximum of two clubs. This will not include admission and life 

membership fees.
v. Personal Accident Insurance: Personal Accident Insurance Cover as applicable in line with rules & policies 

of the Company.
vi. Contribution to Provident Fund: As per Company rules.
vii. Gratuity: As per Company rules subject to maximum of half months salary for each completed year of 

service.
viii.  Encashment of leaves- As per rules of the Company at the end of tenure.

D. General Information:

i. Nature of Industry: Sale of Rice both in India and overseas markets. The company is engaged in the 
business of manufacturing and trading, both Export and Domestic, of rice.

ii. Date of Commencement of Activity: 03rd January, 1995

E. Information about the appointee:

i. Name of the person: Mr. Atul Garg
ii. Background details: Mr. Atul Garg is a B.B.A. and has vast experience relating to rice industry and is 

capable of handling his responsibilities very efficiently. He is managing the day to day affairs of the 
Company with the assistance of the Board of Directors and executives of the Company.

iii. Past remuneration drawn: Rs. 160,000/- per month
iv. Recognition and Awards/Achievements: None
v. Job profile and suitability: Marketing
vi. Remuneration proposed: 250,000/- per month
vii. Relative: Mr. Rohit Garg and Mr. Hukam Chand Garg, being relative of Mr. Atul Garg, Directors are 

interested in the resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to take the 
necessary actions and complete all legal formalities related thereto.’’

Place: Delhi
Date:  28.08.2017

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
 Hukam Chand Garg

Managing Director
DIN:  00673276
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NOTES:

a) The relevant details as required under Regulation 27(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015) entered into with the stock exchanges, of persons seeking 
appointment/reappointment as Directors under Item 2,4 & 5 of the Notice, are also annexed.

b) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) is entitled to appoint a proxy to 
attend and vote instead of himself. A proxy need not be member of the company. The instrument appointing 
the proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the Company's Registered Office, duly completed 
and signed, not less than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of 
limited companies, societies, etc., must be supported by appropriate resolutions/authority, as applicable. A 
person can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in aggregate not more 
than 10 % of total share capital of the Company. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member 
holding more than 10% of the total share Capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy 
shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

c) Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested 
to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend 
and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

d) Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail 
addresses for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the 
Company electronically.

e) In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will 
be entitled to vote.

f) The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 21.09.2017 to 
Thursday, 28.09.2017 (both days inclusive).

g) Relevant documents referred to in the Notice and Explanatory Statement are open for inspection at the 
Registered Office of the Company on all working days, (except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays) 
between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. upto the date of the Meeting.

h) Members/Proxies should bring their attendance slips duly completed for attending the Meeting.

(i) Members are requested to notify any change in their address, bank details, etc.:

(ii) To their Depository Participants (DPs) in respect of shares held in demat form; and

(iii) To the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company in respect of shares held in physical form, quoting 
their folio numbers.

j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are 
therefore requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their 
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company or 
to Abhipra Capital Limited, Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company.

k) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has undertaken a 'Green Initiative in Corporate Governance' and allowed 
companies to share documents with its shareholders through an electronic mode. Members who have not 
yet registered their e-mail address are requested to support this green initiative by registering their e-mail 
addresses with Abhipra Capital Limited in case the shares are held in physical form and with the Depository 
Participant in case the shares are held in demat form.
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l)  Voting through electronic means:
In terms of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI ((Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, the Company is providing facility to 
exercise votes on the items of business given in the notice through electronic voting system, to 
shareholders holding shares as on September 21st, 2017 being the cut-off date ("Record date" for the 
purpose of Rule 20(3)(vii) of the said Rules) fixed for determining voting rights of shareholders entitled to 
participate in the e-voting process through the e-voting platform provided by National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL). The e-voting rights of the shareholders/beneficiary owners shall be reckoned on the equity 
shares held by them as on Thursday, September 21, 2017. The instructions for   e-voting are as under:   

Instructions for the voting through electronic means

I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosures requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, the Company is pleased to 
provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through 
e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a 
place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL).

II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending 
the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the 
meeting through ballot paper.

III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but 
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

IV. The remote e-voting period commences on 25th September, 2017(9:00 am) and ends on 27th  September, 
2017 (5:00 pm). During this period members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 21st September, 2017,  may cast their vote by remote e-voting. 
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is 
cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

V. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

A. In case a Member receives an email from NSDL [for members whose email IDs are registered with the 
Company/Depository Participants(s)] :

(i) Open email and open PDF file viz; “remote e-voting.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The 
said PDF file contains your user ID and password/PIN for remote e-voting. Please note that the password is 
an initial password.

(ii) Launch internet browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com

(iii) Click on Shareholder – Login

(iv) Put user ID and password as initial password/PIN noted in step (i) above. Click Login.

(v) Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new password of your choice with 
minimum 8 digits/characters or combination thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not to 
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(vi) Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-voting: Active Voting Cycles.

(vii) Select “EVEN” of “GRM Overseas Limited”.
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(viii) Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.

(ix) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

(x) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

(xi) Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xii) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail 
to sas.associates07@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [for members whose email IDs are not 
registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) or requesting physical copy] :

(i) Initial password is provided as below/at the bottom of the Attendance Slip for the AGM :
EVEN (Remote e-voting Event Number)       USER ID       PASSWORD/PIN

(ii) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. (xii) above, to cast vote

VI. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members and remote e-
voting user manual for Members available at the downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll 
free no.: 1800-222-990.

VII. If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and 
password/PIN for casting your vote. 

VIII. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be 
used for sending future communication(s).

IX. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date of 21st September, 2017.

X. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of 
the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 21st  September, 2017, may obtain the login ID and 
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or RTA.

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID 
and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using 
“Forgot User Details/Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following 
toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

XI.  A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-
voting /voting at the AGM through ballot paper. 

XII. M/s SAS & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries have been appointed as the Scrutinizer for 
providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting at the AGM and remote e-voting 
process in a fair and transparent manner.

XIII. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, 
allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot Paper”/ “Poling Paper” for all those members 
who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

XIV. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the 
meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two 
witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion 
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Place: Delhi
Date:  28.08.2017

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
 Hukam Chand Garg

Managing Director
DIN:  00673276

of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the 
Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of 
the voting forthwith.

XV. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 
www.grmrice.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman 
or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, 
Mumbai.
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Statement under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Special Business mentioned in 
the Notice convening 23rd Annual General Meeting: 

Item No.4: Appointment of Mr. Rohit Garg as Chairman cum Managing Director: 

Mr. Hukum Chand Garg Managing Director of the Company express his desire to retire from duties of Managing 
Director and day to day affairs of the company due his age factor, however Mr. Hukum Chand Garg will be 
associated with the company as non executive Director liable to retire by rotation.  The Board on recommendation 
of Nomination and remuneration committee the Board has appointed Mr. Rohit Garg as Chairman cum Managing 
Director of the Company with effect from 1st September, 2017 in its meeting held on 28th August, 2017. The 
Employment Agreement was executed between the Company and Mr. Rohit Garg on 28th August, 2017. The 
Directors are of the view that his knowledge, experience guidance would be useful for the growth of the Company 
in the future as well.

Mr. Rohitl Garg is holding 858000 equity shares in the Company.

The material terms and conditions of the agreement including remuneration are as follows:

A. DUTIES AND POSITION

a) Mr. Rohit Garg agrees to serve the Company in the capacity of Chairman cum Managing Director for the 
period 1st September, 2017 to 31st August, 2020 (subject to earlier termination as hereinafter provided) on 
the terms and conditions herein contained.

b)  Mr. Rohit Garg alongwith Atul Garg Joint Managing Director will be overall in-charge of all operations of the 
Company and entrusted with substantial powers of management of the affairs of the Company. 

c)   Mr. Rohit Garg shall faithfully adhere to, execute and fulfil all policies and guidelines established by the 
Board of Directors of the Company 

d) Irrespective of his authorisation to represent the Company externally in accordance with the Articles of 
Association, special shareholders' resolutions or statutory laws, Mr. Rohit Garg is obliged to observe and to 
ensure that they are observed within the Company.

e)  Mr. Rohit Garg further undertakes to ensure adherence to the compliance standards valid within the 
Company. This includes in particular observance of the Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Guideline (on the 
handling of acceptance of gratuities and gifts) and the Competition and Antitrust Guideline(dealings with 
competitors and business partners).

f) Mr. Rohit Garg confirms that he has knowledge of the content of the foresaid guidelines and guarantees that 
they are adopted within the Company and agrees to take the necessary measures to enforce a compliance 
environment within the Company.

g) Mr. Rohit Garg shall devote the most substantial part of his time and attention to the affairs of the Company 
and shall not, without its express consent in writing, engage in any business, profession or occupation 
(whether or not competing with its business) or become a Director, consultant, partner or owner in or of any 
other entity. 

h) Mr. Rohit Garg shall well and faithfully serve the Company and use his best endeavors to promote the 
interests thereof. He shall not, while an employee thereof or thereafter, directly or indirectly, divulge any 
information concerning the affairs, or any information of whatever nature which he shall have acquired 
during his employment, to anyone or to use it for any purpose except performance of his duties in terms of 
his Employment Agreement.
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B. REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

a. Period: Period of appointment is Three Years w.e.f. 1st September, 2017.

b. Salary: the gross Salary will be Rs 2,50,000/-per month including the Perquisites & Allowances

c. Perquisites & Allowances: The following Perquisites & Allowances are included in gross salary 

i. House Rent Allowance: House Rent Allowance in accordance with the rules of the Company.
ii. Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for the appointee and his family subject to a ceiling of one 

month salary in one year.
iii. Leave Travel Concession: As per rules of the Company.
iv. Club Fees: Fees of club subject to maximum of two clubs. This will not include admission and life 

membership fees.
v. Personal Accident Insurance: Personal Accident Insurance Cover as applicable in line with rules & policies 

of the Company.
vi. Contribution to Provident Fund: As per Company rules.
vii. Gratuity: As per Company rules subject to maximum of half months salary for each completed year of 

service.
viii.  Encashment of leaves- As per rules of the Company at the end of tenure.

C. OTHER TERMS AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT: Other terms and the termination of employment 
shall be governed as per the Employment Agreement with Mr. Rohit Garg.

The above may be treated as an abstract under Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

A copy of the referred agreement entered into between the Company on the one part and Mr. Rohit Garg on the 
other part is open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office or at the Head Office of the Company on 
any working day between 10.00 am and 12.00 noon till the Annual General Meeting.

The appointment and remuneration paid / payable to Mr. Rohit Garg is required to be approved by the 
shareholders in the General Meeting and accordingly this resolution is being placed before the members for 
approval.

The Board recommends the Resolution under Item No. 4 of the Notice for approval of the Members as a Special 
Resolution.

Item No.5: Appointment of Mr. Atul Garg as Joint Managing Director:

Mr. Atul Garg was appointed as the Joint Managing Director of the Company with effect from 1st September, 2017 
by the Board in its meeting held on 28th August, 2017. The Employment Agreement was executed between the 
Company and Mr. Atul Garg on 28th August, 2017. The Directors are of the view that his knowledge, experience 
guidance would be useful for the growth of the Company in the future as well.

Mr. Atul Garg is holding 858000 equity shares in the Company.

The material terms and conditions of the agreement including remuneration are as follows:

A. DUTIES AND POSITION

a) Mr. Atul Garg agrees to serve the Company in the capacity of joint Managing Director for the period 1st 
September, 2017 to 31st August, 2020 (subject to earlier termination as hereinafter provided) on the terms 
and conditions herein contained.

b)  Mr. Atul Garg asa a joint managing director alongwith Rohit Garg Chairman cum Managing Director will be 
overall in-charge of all operations of the Company and entrusted with substantial powers of management of 
the affairs of the Company. 
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c)   Mr. Atul Garg shall faithfully adhere to, execute and fulfil all policies and guidelines established by the Board 
of Directors of the Company 

d) Irrespective of his authorisation to represent the Company externally in accordance with the Articles of 
Association, special shareholders' resolutions or statutory laws, Mr. Atul Garg is obliged to observe and to 
ensure that they are observed within the Company.

e) Mr. Atul Garg further undertakes to ensure adherence to the compliance standards valid within the 
Company. This includes in particular observance of the Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption Guideline (on the 
handling of acceptance of gratuities and gifts) and the Competition and Antitrust Guideline (dealings with 
competitors and business partners).

f) Mr. Atul Garg confirms that he has knowledge of the content of the foresaid guidelines and guarantees that 
they are adopted within the Company and agrees to take the necessary measures to enforce a compliance 
environment within the Company.

g) Mr. Atul Garg shall devote the most substantial part of his time and attention to the affairs of the Company 
and shall not, without its express consent in writing, engage in any business, profession or occupation 
(whether or not competing with its business) or become a Director, consultant, partner or owner in or of any 
other entity. 

h) Mr. Atul Garg shall well and faithfully serve the Company and use his best endeavors to promote the 
interests thereof. He shall not, while an employee thereof or thereafter, directly or indirectly, divulge any 
information concerning the affairs, or any information of whatever nature which he shall have acquired 
during his employment, to anyone or to use it for any purpose except performance of his duties in terms of 
his Employment Agreement.

B. REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

a. Period: Period of appointment is Three Years w.e.f. 1st September, 2017.

b. Salary: the gross Salary will be Rs 2,50,000/-per month including the Perquisites & Allowances

c. Perquisites & Allowances: The following Perquisites & Allowances are included in gross salary 

i. House Rent Allowance: House Rent Allowance in accordance with the rules of the Company.

ii. Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for the appointee and his family subject to a ceiling of one 
month salary in one year.

iii.  Leave Travel Concession: As per rules of the Company.

iv. Club Fees: Fees of club subject to maximum of two clubs. This will not include admission and life 
membership fees.

v. Personal Accident Insurance: Personal Accident Insurance Cover as applicable in line with rules & policies 
of the Company.

vi. Contribution to Provident Fund: As per Company rules.

vii. Gratuity: As per Company rules subject to maximum of half months salary for each completed year of 
service.

viii.  Encashment of leaves- As per rules of the Company at the end of tenure.

C. OTHER TERMS AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT: Other terms and the termination of employment 
shall be governed as per the Employment Agreement with Mr. Atul Garg.

The above may be treated as an abstract under Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

A copy of the referred agreement entered into between the Company on the one part and Mr. Atul Garg on the 
other part is open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office or at the Head Office of the Company on 
any working day between 10.00 am and 12.00 noon till the Annual General Meeting.

The appointment and remuneration paid / payable to Mr. Atul Garg is required to be approved by the shareholders 
in the General Meeting and accordingly this resolution is being placed before the members for approval.

The Board recommends the Resolution under Item No. 5 of the Notice for approval of the Members as a Special 
Resolution.

NOTICE - 10
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER 
REGULATION 36 OF THE LISTING REGULATIONS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED BY 
SECRETARIAL STANDARD -2 (SS-2) ISSUED BY INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA IS AS 
UNDER:

Particulars/ Names

01.07.1972

30.06.2003

B.Com

General Administration

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

858000

6 out of 10 Board Meeting

Rs./-19,20,000

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg and 
Atul Garg are relative 

06.10.1978

14.02.2011

B.B.A.

Marketing

1. USG BUILDTECH LLP

2. ROHIT BUILDTECH 
PRIVATE LIMITED

3. ALFA TECHNOBUILD 
PRIVATE LIMITED

4. HA BUILDTECH 
PRIVATE LIMITED

5. SHINE TECHNOBUILD 
PRIVATE LIMITED

6. EROS AGRO & FARMS 
PRIVATE LIMITED

2

Nil

Nil

Nil

858000

7 out of 10 Board Meeting

Rs.19,20,000/-

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg and
Rohit Garg are relative

Rohit Garg Atul Garg

Date of Birth

Date of Appointment

Qualification

Expertise in specific functional 
areas

Directorship of other companies 
(excluding Foreign Companies and 
Section 8 Companies)

Chairmanship/ Membership of 
Committees of other Public 
Companies :

a)Audit Committee

b)Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee

c)Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee

Number of shares held in the 
Company in his own name

Number of Board Meetings 
attended during 2016-17

Remuneration drawn during 
Financial Year 2016-17

Directors’ inter se relationship with 
other Directors/Key Managerial 
Personnel

NOTICE - 1211



GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

CIN L74899DL1995PLC064007

Name Of The Company GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Registered Office 128, First Floor, Shiva Market, Pitampura, New Delhi-110034.

Name of the member(s)

Registered Address

Folio No./Client ID/ DP ID

I/We, being the member(s) of___________________________________________shares of the above 
named company, hereby appoint:

1. Name

Address

E-mail ID
 Signature

or failing him

2.
Name

Address

E-mail ID  Signature

or failing him

3. Name

Address

E-mail ID  Signature

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

23rd Annual General Meeting
Thursday, 28th September 2017
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GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 23rd Annual General Meeting 
of the Company, to be held on Thursday, 28th September, 2017 at 10.30 A.M. at MH One Resort Hotel Bakoli 
Alipur, Main G.T. karnal Road Delhi-110036 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such Resolutions as are 
indicated below:

Ordinary Business

1 Standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 
2017 together with the Reports of the Auditors’ and Directors’ thereon; and

(b) Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 
31, 2017 together with the Report of Auditors’ thereon.

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rohit Garg, who retire by rotation and being eligible offers 
himself for appointment

3 Appointment of Vishal Malhotra & Company, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors and fixing 
their remuneration

Signed this _______________ day of ________________, 2017

Signature of Shareholder: _____________________________

Affix Re. 1/-
Revenue
Stamp

Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. For the Resolutions, Explanatory Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the Twenty Third 
Annual General Meeting

3. Please complete all the details including details of member(s) in above box before submission

Special Business

4 Appointment of Mr. Rohit  Garg (DIN: 00673304) as Chairman cum Managing Director

5 Appointment of Mr. Atul Garg (DIN: 02380612) as Joint Managing Director
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GRM

TO,
THE MEMBERS,
GRM OVERSES LIMITED
Your Company’s Directors are pleased to present the 23rd Annual Report of the Company along with Audited 
Accounts, for the financial year ended 31st March, 2017.

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Standalone Financial Result ( ` In Lakhs)

Particular Current Year 2016-17 Previous Year 2015-16

Profit before Depreciation & Finance Charges

Less: Finance Charges                   985.18

          Depreciation                         192.79

Net Profit after Depreciation & Finance 
Charges

Less: Provision for Income Tax, Deferred Tax

Transferred to Profit & Loss Account

2025.11

1177.97

847.14

288.05

559.09

1417.48

1107.09

310.39

105.27

205.12

Consolidated Financial Result ( ` In Lakhs)

Particular Current Year 2016-17 Previous Year 2015-16

Profit before Depreciation & Finance Charges

Less: Finance Charges

          Depreciation

Net Profit after Depreciation & Finance 
Charges

Less: Provision for Income Tax, Deferred Tax

Transferred to Profit & Loss Account

2021.67

1174.93

846.74

288.04

558.70

1417.47

1106.29

310.38

105.27

205.11
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911.96

195.13

982.14

192.79

911.96

195.13

CURRENT YEAR WORKING:

Your Directors hereby inform you that in the current year the overall performance of the company are good as 
compare to the last financial year. During the current year the Company would make all efforts to accelerate its' 
pace of growth and overall performance.

DIVIDEND:

Your Company needs capital for its expansion plans, therefore the board has decided to invest the profit into the 
operation of the Company. Hence, no dividend is recommended for the year ended 31st March, 2017.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves.

Changes in the nature of business, if any

There is no change in the nature of business of your company during the year under review.



GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

SHARE CAPITAL:

The paid up equity capital as on march 31, 2017 was ̀  3,68,95,000. During the year the Company has not come 
out with any public issue, right issue, preferential issue etc. The Company Come out with a Public Issue in the Year 
1995 and it has never come with any right issue, preferential issue etc. thereafter.

FINANCE:

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2017 was ` 145.92 lakhs. The company continues to focus on 
judicious management of its working capital, Receivables, inventories and other working capital parameters were 
kept under strict check through continuous monitoring.

FIXED DEPOSITS:

During the Financial Year Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

The company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013.The details of the investments made by company is given in the notes to the financial 
statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its 
operations. The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined in the Internal Audit Manual. To 
maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee of the Board & to the Chairman & Managing Director.

The Internal Audit Department monitors and evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of internal control system in the 
Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the 
Company. Based on the report of internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their 
respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and recommendations along 
with corrective actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

The company has duly constituted CSR Committee, which is responsible for fulfilling the CSR objectives of the 
company.

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed herewith as: Annexure A

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO:

The information pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder 
regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings & outgo as required, 
are annexed as “ Annexure D” and forms part of this report.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

During the year under review, your Company enjoyed cordial relationship with workers and employees at all 
levels.

DIRECTORS:

In accordance with the Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 & Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Rohit Garg, Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting & being eligible 
offers herself for re-appointment and the Board of Directors recommends for his re-appointment.

During the Financial Year Mr. Vijay Kumar Dwivedi resign from the post of company secretary on 16th April 2016 
and Mrs. Tanushree Agarwal appoint as company secretary on 01.10.2016 

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017.......5
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BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable provisions of the SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 
2015 the Board has carried out an evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually as well as the 
evaluation of the working of its Audit, Appointment & Remuneration Committees. The manner in which the 
evaluation has been carried out has been explained in the Corporate Governance Report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Appointment & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for 
selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The Remuneration Policy is 
stated in the Corporate Governance Report.

MEETINGS

A calendar of Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors.

During the year Ten Board Meetings and four Audit Committee Meetings and other committee meeting were 
convened and held. The details of which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap 
between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

The following employees were designated as whole-time key managerial personnel by the Board of Directors 
during the year under review:

(i) Mr. Hukam Chand Garg, Managing Director

(ii) Mr Rohit Garg, Whole-Time-Director

(iii) Mr. Atul Garg, Whole-Time-Director

(iv) Mr. Rattan Lal Mittal, Chief Financial Officer

(v) Ms. Tanushree Agarwal- Company Secretary

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the directors would like to state that:

i)  In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed.

ii) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year under review.

iii) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities.

iv)  The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

v) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

vi) The directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such system were adequate and operating effectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

During the year under review, the Board has adopted a policy to regulate the transactions of the Company with its 
related parties. As per policy, all the related party transactions required prior approval of Audit Committee and 
Board of Directors of the Company. Prior approval of shareholders of the Company is also required for certain 
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related party transactions as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013 and listing agreement. The said policy is 
available at the company website viz. http/www.grmrice.com.

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were 
in the ordinary course of the business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the 
company with promoters, key managerial personnel or other designated persons which may have potential 
conflict with interest of the company at large.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES:

During the Year Company had subsidiaries whose performance is included in the Consolidated Financial 
Statements viz GRM International Holdings Ltd. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;  Annual 
accounts have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis;

The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

CODE OF CONDUCT:

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Members of the Board and all 
employees in the course of day to day business operations of the company. The Company believes in “Zero 
Tolerance” against bribery, corruption and unethical dealings / behaviors of any form and the Board has laid down 
the directives to counter such acts. The code laid down by the Board is known as “code of business conduct” 
which forms an Appendix to the Code. The Code has been posted on the Company’s website www.grmrice.com.

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the 
Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity 
in the work place, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The Code gives guidance through 
examples on the expected behaviour from an employee in a given situation and the reporting structure.

All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. All 
Management Staff were given appropriate training in this regard.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company has a vigil mechanism named Fraud and Risk Management Policy to deal with instance of fraud 
and mismanagement, if any.

In staying true to our values of Strength, Performance and Passion and in line with our vision of being one of the 
most respected companies in India, the Company is committed to the high standards of Corporate Governance 
and stakeholder responsibility.

The Company has a Fraud Risk and Management Policy to deal with instances of fraud and mismanagement, if 
any.

The FRM Policy ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained whilst dealing with concerns and also that no 
discrimination will be meted out to any person for a genuinely raised concern.

A high level Committee has been constituted which looks into the complaints raised. The Committee reports to the 
Audit Committee and the Board.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING:

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in 
securities by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for 

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED
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dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the Directors and the 
designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company 
and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible for implementation of the 
Code.

All Board Directors and the designated employees have confirmed compliance with the Code.

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR ADVERSE 
REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE:

There is no other qualification, reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the auditor in his report; and 
the company secretary in practice in his secretarial audit report.

AUDITORS:

To appoint  M/s Vishal Malhotra & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN-012750N) as Statutory auditor of the 
company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual 
General Meeting on such remuneration as may be fixed in this behalf by the Board of Directors of the Company. A 
certificate from the auditors have been received to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be within the 
limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ REPORT:

The Auditors’ Report is annexed hereto and forms part of the Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

Pursuant to provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the company has appointed SAS & Associates, a firm of 
company Secretaries in practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit report is 
annexed herewith as “Annexure B”

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9 is annexed herewith as “Annexure C”.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The company at its Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2014 had appointed Mr. Vikram Malik, Mr. 
Chetan Kapoor and Mrs. Kiran Dua, as Independent Directors of the Company. They hold office for a period up to 
31st March, 2019 and shall not be liable to retire by rotation. Further all the Independent directors have declared 
and affirmed their Compliance with the independence criteria as mention in section 149(6) of the Companies act, 
2013 and Listing Regulations as applicable, in respect of their position as Independent Directors of the company.

APPOINTMENT OF INTERNAL AUDITOR:

The Company has appointed Mr. Ram Niwas Yadav as an Internal Auditor of the Company. Mr. Ram Niwas Yadav, 
placed the internal audit report to the Company which is self explanatory and need no comments. 

LISTING OF SHARES:

The shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited (BSE). The listing fee for the year 2016–17 has already 
been paid to the stock exchanges.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT:

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 & provisions of SEBI(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the 
company has constituted a business risk management committee. The details of the committee and its terms of 
reference are set out in the corporate governance report forming part of the Boards report.

At present the company has not identified any element of risk which may threaten the existence of the company.
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Name of Director Ratio

GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES 
(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

• The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration for the financial year 
and such other details as prescribed is as given below:

Shri Hukam Cand Garg- (Chairman & Managing Director)

Shri Atul Garg- (Whole-Time-Director)

Shri Rohit Garg- (Whole-Time-Director)

                                        36.47

                                        32.42

                                        32.42

• The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, 
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:-

S.No. Name Designation % Change

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

Mr. Hukam Cand Garg

Mr. Rohit Garg

Mr. Atul Garg

Ms. Tanushree Agarwal

Mr. Rattan Lal Mittal

Chairman & Managing Director

Whole-Time-Director

Whole-Time-Director

Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

-11.94

-12.50

-12.50

-75.00

NA

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given herein below:

• The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:- Nil

• The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company:239

• The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company 
performance:-
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• Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration 
and justification thereof and there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration:- N.A

• The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors:- N.A

• The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but 
receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year:- N.A

• Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company. YES 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance which form an integral part of this Report, are set out as separate Annexures, together 
with the Certificate from the auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the requirements of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 2015

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

As required by Regulation 34 read with Para B of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 , a detailed ‘Management Discussion and Analysis 
Report’ (MDA) is attached as a separate section forming part of the Annual Report. More details on operations and 
a view on the outlook for the current year are also given in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis Report’.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION:

The Company has complied with all the applicable environmental law and labour laws. The Company has been 
complying with the relevant laws and has been taking all necessary measures to protect the environment and 
maximize worker protection and safety. 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) 
ACT, 2013:

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints 
Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees 
(permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year 2016-17. 

• No of complaints received:0

• No of complaints disposed off :0

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Company and its Directors wish to extend their sincerest thanks to the Members of the Company, Bankers, 
State Government, Local Bodies, Customers, Suppliers, Executives, Staff and workers at all levels for their 
continuous co-operation and assistance.

Year ended 2016 Year ended 2017 % increase

Employee benefit expenses

Sales

Profit

EPS

18,139,103.00

3,557,241,148.24

20,511,875.11

5.56

21,774,128

5,911,507,500.40

55,909,247.89

15.15

20.03

66.18

172.57

172.48
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

                          ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the companys CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes 
proposed  to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 
programmes.

CSR policy is stated herein below:

CSR Policy

(Approved by the Board of Directors on 05.01.2015)

Our aim is to be one of the most respected companies in India delivering superior and everlasting value to all our 
customers, associates, shareholders, employees and Society at large.The CSR initiatives focus on holistic 
development of host communities and create social, environmental and economic value to the society.

To pursue these objectives we will continue to:

a. Work actively in areas of eradication of hunger and poverty, provide opportunity and financial assistance for the 
promotion of education, provide medical aid to the needy and down trodden. 

b. Collaborate with likeminded bodies like Voluntary organizations, charitable trusts, governments and academic 
institutes in pursuit of our goals.

c. Interact regularly with stakeholders, review and publicly report our CSR initiatives .

2.   Composition of CSR committee:

As required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has formed a CSR committee consisting 
of the following members:

S.No. Name of Director Designation

1.

2.

3.

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg

Mr. Atul Garg

Mrs. Kiran Dua

Chairman

Member

Member

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years:

Average net profit: ̀  40703463.03

4.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure ( Two percent of the amount as in item 3 above)

 The company is required to spend ̀  814069.26

5. Details of CSR spend for the financial year :

     a) Total amount spent for the financial year: ̀  12,00,000/-

       b) Amount unspent if any: Nil

  c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

Place: Delhi
Date:  28.08.2017

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
 Hukam Chand Garg

Managing Director
DIN:  00673276
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S.No. Project/
Activities

Sector Location Amount outlay 
(budget) project 
or programme 
wise (` Lakhs)

Amount 
spent on the 
project or    
programme 
(` Lakhs)

Cumulative 
Expenditure 
upto 
reporting 
period (` 
Lakhs)

Amount 
spent: Direct 
or through 
implementing 
agency*

1 Expansion 
of Hospital

Health     
care 

Dist-
Bishnupur 
Manipur

67.88 12.00 12.00 12.00

*Detail of Implementing Agency:  D-Cacus-Education Centre (DCEC) & GRM Overseas Limited.

Place: Delhi
Date:  28.08.2017

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
 Hukam Chand Garg

Chairman Cum Managing Director
DIN:  00673276

Sd/-
Atul Garg

Whole-Time-Director
DIN: 02380612
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
Form No. MR-3

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2017

To,
The Members,
GRM Overseas Limited (Ltd. Co.With Part IX) 
128, First Floor, Shiva Market,
Pitampura, New Delhi -110034

Date of Incorporation: 03/01/1995
Authorized Share Capital: 70,000,000
Paid up Share Capital: 36,895,000

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions GRM Overseas 
Limited (LTD. CO. WITH PART IX) hereinafter referred to as (“the company”).Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the GRM Overseas Limited (LTD. CO. WITH PART IX) books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby 
report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st Day 
of March, 2017 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
GRM Overseas Limited (LTD. CO. WITH PART IX) (‘The Company') for the financial year ended on 31st Day of 
March, 2017 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made    there under to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable to 
the company during the audit period)

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and   Takeovers) Regulations, 
2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2009;
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d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; I/we have also 
examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i.   Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

j.   The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange(s), 

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors and Non-
Executive Directors, including appointment of Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the 
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines.

Place: Delhi
Date: 30.07.2017

SAS And Associates 
Company Secretaries

Shazan Ali
Partner

FCS No:-8748
C P No:- 9354
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Annexure- A
To,
The Members,
GRM Overseas Limited (LTD. CO. WITH PART IX) 
128, First Floor, Shiva Market,
Pitampura, New Delhi -110034

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we 
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the 
Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representations about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test 
basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability nor of the efficacy of the 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place: Delhi
Date: 30.07.2017

SAS And Associates 
Company Secretaries

Shazan Ali
Partner

FCS No:-8748
C P No:- 9354
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ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

FORM No. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON

31ST MARCH, 2017

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATIONANDOTHERDETAILS:

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

v.

vi.

vii.

CIN

Registration Date

Name of the Company

Category/Sub-Category of 
the Company

Address of the Registered 
office and contact details 
with web link

Whether listed company

Name, Address and Contact 
details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, If any

L74899DL1995PLC064007

03/01/1995

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

128, FIRST FLOOR, SHIVA MARKET, 
PITAMPURA, DELHI-110034.
TEL:011-47330330,                     
WEBSITE: WWW.GRMRICE.COM, 

Yes

ABHIPRA CAPITAL LIMITED,
A-387, ABHIPRA COMPLEX, G T 
KARNAL ROAD, DILKHUSH INDL. 
AREA, AZADPUR, DELHI-110033. PH: 

II. PRINCIPAL  BUSINESS  ACTIVITIES  OF  THE  COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:- 

Sr. No. Name and Description of 
main products/ services

NIC Code of the Product/ 
service

%  to total turnover of the 
company

1 RICE 10612 100%

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sr. No. Name Of The Company CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary
/Associate

1 GRM INTERNATIONAL 
HOLDINGS LTD

N.A. Subsidiary

%of shares held

100

Applicable
Section

Sec-2(87)(ii)
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the 
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end 
of the year

% Change 
during 

The year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

A. Promoter

1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 2716200 NIL 2716200 73.62 2716200 NIL 2716200 73.62 NIL

b) Central Govt. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

c) State Govt(s) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

d) Bodies Corp NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

e) Banks / FI NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

f) Any Other NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Subtotal(A)(1):- 2716200 2716200 73.62 2716200 2716200 73.62 NIL

2) Foreign

g) NRIs-Individuals NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

h) Other-Individuals NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

i) Bodies Corp. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

j) Banks / FI NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

k) Any Other…. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sub-total(A)(2):- NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total shareholding of

 Promoter

(A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2) 2716200 NIL 2716200 73.62 2716200 NIL 2716200 73.62 NIL

B. Public 

Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds NIL 78300 78300 2.12 NIL 78300 78300 2.12 NIL

b) Banks / FI 124000 NIL 124000 3.36 124000 NIL 124000 3.36 NIL

c) Central Govt. NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

d) State Govt.(s) 109000 NIL 109000 2.95 117192 NIL 117192 3.18 0.23

e) Venture NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Capital Funds

f) Insurance NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Companies

g) FIIs NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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h) Foreign Venture NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Capital Funds

i) Others (specify) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Sub-total(B)(1) 233000 78300 311300 8.44 241192 78300 319492 8.66 0.23

2. Non Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

(i) Indian 22763 100 22863 0.61 99285 100 99385 2.69 2.09

(ii) Overseas NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

b) Individuals

(i) Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital 

up to ̀  2 lakh 153564 43600 197164 5.34 204807 43400 248207 6.73 1.39

(ii) Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital in 

excess of  ̀  2 lakh 325388 NIL 325388 8.81 173900 NIL 173900 4.71 (4.1)

c) Others

i-NRI 2801 48300 51100 1.38 2801 48300 51101 1.38 NIL

ii-Clearing Members NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii-HUF 21585 NIL 21585 0.59 37315 NIL 37315 1.01 0.42

iv- NRI/OCBs NIL 43900 43900 1.19 NIL 43900 43900 1.19 0.00

Sub-total(B)(2) 526100 135900 662000 17.92 518108 135700 653808 17.72 (0.2)

Total Public

 Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 759100 214200  973300 26.38 759300 214000 973300 26.38 0.00

C. Shares held 

by Custodian for 

GDRs & ADRs NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Grand Total

(A+B+C) 3475300 214200 3689500 100 3475500 214000 3689500 100 Nil
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters

Sr. No Shareholder’s Name
Shareholding at the 
beginning of the 

Shareholding at the 
end of the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
company

%of 
Shares 
Pledged / 
encumber
ed to 

No. of 
Shares

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
compan

%of 
Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbe
red to 

% change 
in share 
holding 

HUKAM CHAND  
GARG

ROHIT GARG

ATUL GARG

Total

1.

2.

3.

1626200

1090000

NIL

2716200

44.08

29.54

NIL

73.62

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

1000200

 858000

858000

2716200

27.11

23.25

23.26

73.62

-16.97

-6.29

23.26

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is change) NOT APPLICABLE

Sr. No.
Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year

At the beginning of 
the year

1.

2.

% of total 
shares of the 
company

No. of 
Shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
shares of the 
company

Date wise Increase / 
Decrease in 
Promoters Share 
holding during the 
year specifying the 
reasons for increase/ 
decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / 
bonus/ sweat equity 
etc):

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.3.
At the End of the 
year
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of 
GDRs and ADRs):

Sr. 
No

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Shareholding at the end of the 
year

Particulars

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

HARYANA FINANCIAL
CORPORATION

OM PARKASH MITTAL

MAMTA SINGAL

HARYANA STATE 
INDUSTRIAL AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE
DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION LTD

SHRIRAM MUTUAL 
FUND-TAX GUARDI

LLOYDS SECURITIES 
OVERSEAS LTD

DHEERAJ MITTAL

KISHNI DEVI

ARVINDKUMAR J 
SANCHETI

SHRI PARASRAM 
HOLDINGS PVT.LTD.

124000

118650

110600

109000

78300

42500

31250

24000

19190

18977

3.36088

3.21588

2.99769

2.95432

2.12223

1.15191

0.84699

0.65049

0.52012

0.51435

124000

118650

0

117192

78300

42500

31250

24000

15619

88237

3.36088

3.21588

0

3.17636

2.12223

1.15191

0.84699

0.65049

0.42333

2.39157

No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans 
excluding 

Deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year

i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not

Total(i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year
-  Addition
-  Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness  at the
end  of the financial year

i) Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but notpaid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

90,86,03,180
Nil
Nil

90,86,03,180

Nil
59,70,05,660.88

59,70,05,660.88

1,50,56,08,840.88 
Nil
Nil

1,50,56,08,840.88

Unsecured
Loans

Total
Indebtedne

41,35,85,290
Nil

41,35,85,290

6,12,09,430
6,12,09,430

47,47,94,720
Nil

47,47,94,720

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
Nil

1322188470
Nil

1322188470

Nil
658215090.88

658215090.88

1980403560.88

Nil

Nil
1980403560.88
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time-Directors and/or Manager: ( ` In Lakhs)

Sr. 
No

Name of 
MD/WTD/Manager

Particulars of Remuneration Total
Amount

   1. Gross salary

(a)Salary as per provisions 
contained in section17(1) of the 21.60 19.20 19.20 60
Income-taxAct,1961

(b)Value of perquisites u/s 17 NIL NIL NIL NIL
(2)Income-taxAct,1961

(c)Profits in lieu of salary under NIL NIL NIL NIL
section17(3)Income- taxAct,1961

   2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL

   3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL

   4. Commission - as % of profit - Others, specify… NIL NIL NIL NIL

   5. Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL

   6. Total(A) 21.60 19.20 19.20 60

HUKAM 
CHAND 
GARG-CMD

ROHIT 
GARG-
WTD

ATUL 
GARG-
WTD

B. Remuneration to other directors:

Sr. 
No

Name of 
MD/WTD/Manager

Particulars of Remuneration Total
Amount

Independent Directors
•Fee for attending board and 
committee meetings - - - -
•Commission
•Others, please specify

- - - - - -

Other Non-Executive Directors
•Fee for attending board and 
 committee meetings
•Commission
•Others, please specify

- - - - -

Total(2) Nil NIL NIL NIL

Total(B)=(1+2) NIL NIL NIL NIL

Total Managerial Remuneration NIL NIL NIL NIL

Overall Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL NIL NIL
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WTD: ( ` In Lakhs)

Sr. 
No

KeyManagerialPersonnelParticulars of Remuneration

Total
Company
Secretary

CFO

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 0.6 3.00 3.6
section17(1)of the Income-tax Act,1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s NIL NIL NIL
17(2)Income-tax
Act,1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section NIL NIL NIL
17(3)Income-tax Act,1961

2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL

4. Commission
-  as%ofprofit -others,specify… NIL NIL NIL

5. Others,please specify NIL NIL NIL

6. Total 0.6 3.00 3.6

VII. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

A. Company
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

B. Directors
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

C. Other Officers In Default
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Type

Section of 
the 

companies 
Act

Brief 
description

Details of Penalty/
Punishment/Com

pounding fees 
imposed

Authority[RD
/NCLT/Court]

Appeal made. 
If any(give 

details)

Place: Delhi
Date:  28.08.2017

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
 Hukam Chand Garg

Chairman Cum Managing Director
DIN:  00673276
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ANNEXURE ‘D’ TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134 (3) (m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, FORMING PART OF THE 

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2017

1. Conservation of Energy: Regular preventive maintenance of all Plant & Machinery is carried out to enhance 
productivity and efficiency of Machineries resulting in considerable power saving.

A. POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION
a) Purchase Units 7197864 6694245
i. Total Amounts (`) 60380055/- 55400341/-
ii. Rate/ Unit (`) 8.39/- 8.28/-

b) Own Generation 722630 498632
Through Diesel Generator 
Unit (Approx)

i. Cost of Fuel 8134117/- 5051620/-
ii. Cost/Units (`) 11.26/- 10.13/-

B. CONSUMPTION PER UNIT (M.T.) OF PRODUCTION
a) Production Unit (M.T.) 37192 38332
b) Electricity 7920494 7192877

II. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
a) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
i. Benefit derived as a result of the above R & D None None
ii. Future plan of action None None

The Company would take R & D activities to improve quality and reduce cost by increasing cost efficiency at 
all levels

None None
None None

III. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO
a) Foreign Exchange Earning (in `) 5,34,56,23,761/- 3,00,54,52,035/-
b) Foreign Exchange Outgo (in `) 1,36,17,713/- Nilh

Particular
Previous Year

2015-16
Current Year 

2016-17

Place: Delhi
Date:  28.08.2017

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
 Hukam Chand Garg

Chairman Cum Managing Director
DIN:  00673276
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ANNEXURE ‘E’ TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014.

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transaction 
under third proviso thereto.

1.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details

a)      Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship N.A.

b)      Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.

c)      Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.

d)      Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any N.A.

e)      Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ N.A.

f) Date of approval by the Board N.A.

g)      Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.

h)      Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting N.A.
as required under first proviso to section 188

SL. No. Particulars Details

a)     Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship N.A.

b)     Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.

c)     Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction N.A.

d)     Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value, if any N.A.

e)     Date of approval by the Board N.A.

f)      Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.

2.    Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

For and on behalf of  Board of Directors

Sd/-
Hukam Chand garg

Chairman & managing Director
DIN 00673276
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CERTIFICATE OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER ON CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors
M/s. GRM Overseas Limited,
128, First Floor, Shiva Market 
Pitampura New Delhi 110034

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of GRM Overseas Limited for the 
financial year 2016-17 and certify that:

a) These statements to the best of our knowledge and belief:

I. Do not contain any materially untrue statements or omit any material facts or contain statements that might be 
misleading:

II. Present a true and fair view of the Company‘s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, 
applicable laws and regulations.

b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of 
Conduct.

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and have 
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company for such reporting. We have disclosed 
to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies, if any, in the design or operation of such internal controls, of 
which we are aware of and the steps taken and/or proposed to be taken to rectify these deficiencies.

d) We have also indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee.

(i) Significant changes in Internal Controls with respect to financial reporting during the year.

(ii) Significant changes in accounting policies during the Year and these have been disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements.

e) To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no instances of significant fraud involving either the 
management or employees having a significant role in the Company’s internal control systems with respect to 
financial reporting.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Rattan Lal Mittal

Chief Financial Officer
PAN - AKSPM6152D

Sd/-
H.C. GARG

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00673276

Place: Delhi
Date:  28.08.2017
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DECLARATION REGARDING AFFIRMATION OF CODE OF CONDUCT

In terms of the requirements of Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 2015 , this is to confirm that all 
the members of the Board and the Senior Management personnel have affirmed Compliance with the Code of 
Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2017.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Rattan Lal Mittal

Chief Financial Officer
PAN - AKSPM6152D

Sd/-
H.C. GARG

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00673276

Place: Delhi
Date:  28.08.2017

GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the management discussion and analysis report for the year ended on 
March 31, 2017

Industry Structure & Developments: The year 2016 began with deceleration in economic growth all over the world 
and these phenomena prevailed almost the whole financial year, and were dominated by the recession in Indian 
market and political uncertainty. In spite of all the negative outlook, our Company' accelerate the growth and the 
gross realization and the profitability was improved significantly, despite the increased cost of production, high 
inflationary cost and other factors which were out of control of the Board.

Opportunities and Threats: Indian rice manufacturing companies continue to face stifling scenario, yet the 
capabilities and growth potential of your company are providing opportunities to acquire an in creased market 
share. Despite an unfavorable business sentiment prevailing in the domestic as well as in the international 
market, the company has maintained its freshness, endurance and strength which are very much needed for 
sustainability and growth.

Performance of the Company: GRM Overseas Ltd is one of the leading rice suppliers. It has carved a special 
niche in the domestic as well as international market We are constantly updating our technology requirements We 
fully recognize our responsibility to the community we live in and our duty to give back to the society We are 
actively building opportunities for less fortunate to give them the chance to succeed in a competitive environment. 
We deliver perfection in every grain. We deliver a quality that lets you taste perfection in every bite. We have 
covered many milestones and we will keep moving ahead until we make our way into every home and every heart. 
We have maintained world-class, state-of-the-art computerized plants, made by the internationally acclaimed 
firm Stake.

Internal Control System & their adequacy: The company has an adequate system of internal control implemented 
by the management towards achieving efficiency in operations, optimum utilization of resources and effective 
monitoring thereof and compliance with applicable laws. The system comprises as well-defined organization 
structure, pre determined authority levels and documented policy guidelines and manuals for delegation of 
authority. A qualified and independent audit committee of the Board of Directors reviews the internal audit reports 
and the adequacy of internal controls statements in this management discussion and analysis report are based 
upon the data available with the company and on certain assumptions having regard to the economic conditions, 
government policies, political developments etc. within and outside the country. The management does not 
guarantee the accuracy of the assumptions and the projected performance of the company in future.

Place: Delhi
Date:  28.08.2017

For and on behalf of the board

Sd/-
 Hukam Chand Garg

Chairman Cum Managing Director
DIN:  00673276
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of condition of corporate governance by GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED for the 
year ended on March 31, 2017, as stipulated in relevant regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
disclosure requirement) Regulations 2015 of said company with the stock exchanges.

The compliance of condition of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination 
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of 
the conditions of the corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statement of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the 
company has complied with the conditions of the corporate governance as stipulated in the above mentioned 
listing agreement. 

We state that no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the company as per 
the records maintained by the shareholders / investors grievance committee.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner

Membership No.: 504338

Sd/-
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GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY:

Company believes that fairness in corporate procedures, full disclosures in reporting system, total transparency 
in corporate culture, fiduciary and trustee relationship and maximization of shareholders value in the long run are 
the pillars on which the structure of the corporate governance resets. The concept of corporate governance 
hinges on accountability, responsibility, and effective monitoring, quality of information, integrity, trust & 
confidence.

Company believes that a well-constituted and competent Board of Directors can alone efficiently adopt corporate 
governance framework of "Perspective, Plans, Policy, Processes, Productivity, Performance & People". The 
Board must effectively monitor the corporate resources comprising of "Men, Money, Machines, Material, 
Marketing, Management, and Motivation".

Company's philosophy is to provide colorless document for fair, unbiased, accurate, authentic and factual 
information in most concise and succinct manner to its shareholder, lenders, customers, banker’s government 
and people at large. The company has fulfilled all the existing guidelines under clause Regulation 15(2) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosures requirement) Regulation, 2015

Name of The Director Category of  Director Directorship No. of  Details of shares 
Directorship  held by directors 
in other Public in the GRM 
& Pvt. Ltd. Overseas
Companies Limited 

(Company)

Shri Hukam Chand Garg Executive (Chairman & Managing Director) Nil 1000200

Shri Rohit Garg Executive (Whole-Time-Director) Nil 858000

Shri Atul Garg Executive (Whole-Time-Director) 5 858000

Shri Chetan Kapoor Non-Executive (Independent Director) Nil NIL

Shri Vikram Malik Non-Executive (Independent Director) 1 6600

Smt. Kiran Dua Non-Executive (Independent Director) Nil 4000

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

a) Composition, Category of Directors, other directorship and their shareholding as on March 31, 2017.

b) Number of Board Meetings

During the year ended March 31, 2017, Ten Board Meetings were held on April 04, 2016, 28 May, 2016, 10 August, 
2016, 30 August 2016, 01 October, 2016, 10 November, 2016, 07 December, 2016, 15 December 2016, 11 
February 2017, 31 March 2017.

c) Directors' attendance record:

Name of The Director and DIN Board Meetings Whether attended
Attended During The year Last  AGM

Shri Hukam Chand Garg (DIN: 00673276) 10 Yes

Shri Rohit Garg (DIN: 00673304) 6 No

Shri Atul Garg (DIN:  02380612) 7 Yes

Shri Chetan Kapoor (DIN: 00672045) 4 Yes

Shri Vikram Malik (DIN: 00438494) 9 Yes

Smt. Kiran Dua (DIN: 06951055) 4 No
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d) Review of Compliance Report:

The periodical reports submitted by the Internal Auditors and by the concerned department Heads of the 
Company with regards to compliance of Laws applicable to the Company as well as steps taken by the Company 
to rectify instances of noncompliances, if any, are being reviewed by Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 
as per Regulation 17 (3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. Compliance Certificate signed by the Executive 
Director and Chief Financial Officer is placed before the Board of Directors as specified in Part B of Schedule II of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

e) Code of Conduct:

The Board of Directors of the Company has approved a ‘Code of Conduct’ for all Board members and Senior 
Management Personnel. The Code has been circulated to all the members of the Board
and Senior Management Personnel and they have affirmed the compliance of the same. A copy of the Code of 
Conduct is also posted on the website of the Company viz. www.grmrice.com.
A confirmation from the Executive Director/ Chief Executive Officer affirming Compliance of the Code of Conduct 
by the members of the Board/ Senior Management forms part of this report.

3. Information Supplied to the Board:-

The board is supplied with the necessary information as stipulated in Part A of Schedule II of Sebi  ( LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 to the extent applicable.

4.   COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

a) Audit Committee

i) Terms of Reference:

Apart from all the matters provided in as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 and section 177 of the Companies Act 2013, the Audit committee reviews reports of the internal 
auditor, meets statutory auditors as and when required and discusses their findings, suggestions, observations 
and other related matters. It also reviews major accounting policies followed by the company.

ii) Composition:

The Audit committee consists of three independent directors, Shri. Chetan Kapoor, Shri. Vikram Malik and Smt. 
Kiran Dua has been designated as chairman of the committee. The committee met 4 times during the financial 
year ended March 31, 2017. The attendance record of the members at the meeting were as follows: 

Name of The Member     Designation No Meetings of Attended

Shri. Chetan Kapoor        Chairman 3

Shri. Vikram Malik         Member 4

Smt. Kiran Dua         Member 4

iii) Powers and Role of the Audit Committee :
The Powers and Role of the Audit Committee, constituted by Board of Directors pursuant to Companies Act, 
2013/SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, include the following:

i. Powers:

(a) To investigate any activity within its terms of reference.
(b) To seek information from any employee.
(c) To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.
(d) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if
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it considers necessary.

ii. Role :
(a) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure 
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

(b) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company.

(c) Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

(d) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before 
submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

i. Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in 
terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

ii. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices
and reasons for the same.

iii. Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management.

iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings.

v. Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements.

vi. Disclosure of any Related Party Transactions.

vii. Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report.

(e) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for 
approval.

(f ) Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through an issue (public 
issue, rights issue, preferential issue etc.) the statement of funds utilized for the purposes other than those stated 
in the offer document/ prospectus/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the 
utilization of proceeds of a public or right issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up 
steps in this matter.

(g) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process.

(h) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related parties.

(i) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

(j) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary

(k) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

(l) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal 
control systems.

(m) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and 
frequency of internal audit.
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(n) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on.

(o) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is 
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter 
to the Board.

(p) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as 
post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

(q) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

(r) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

(s) Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer (i.e., the Whole-Time Finance Director or any other person 
heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & 
background, etc. of the candidate.

(t) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

iv) Review of information by the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee mandatorily reviews the following information:

i. Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

ii. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by the 
Management;

iii. Management letters/ letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

iv. Internal Audit Reports relating to internal control weaknesses;

v. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor shall be subject to review by 
the Audit Committee.

vi. Statement of deviations :

a.) Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submitted to stock 
exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

b.) Annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7) SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

B) Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee:

a) The Committee consists of three independent directors, Shri. Chetan Kapoor, Shri. Vikram Malik, and Smt. 
Kiran Dua. has been designated as chairman of the committee. The committee met 2 times during the financial 
year ended March 31, 2017. The attendance record of the members at the meeting were as follows:

Name of The Member     Designation No Meetings of Attended

Shri. Chetan Kapoor        Chairman 2

Shri. Vikram Malik         Member 2

Smt. Kiran Dua         Member 2
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The Committee specifically looks into redressal of shareholders' and Investors' complaints such as transfer of 
shares, non-receipt of shares, non-receipt of dividend declared, to ensure expeditious share transfer process and 
to review the status of investors' grievances.

b) Status of complaints received, resolved and pending during the Financial Year 2016-17 is as follows:

Opening: 0        Received: 2           Resolved: 2            Pending: 0

As on March 31, 2017, no request for registration of transfer of shares/ dematerialization was pending.

c)  Process of transfer of shares

All complete and valid requests for transfer/transmission of shares are given effect to within the time stipulated in 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

C) Nomination & Remuneration Committee and policy:

a) The appointment & remuneration committee comprises of three independent Directors.

Name of The Member Designation

Shri. Chetan Kapoor Chairman

Shri. Vikram Malik Member

Smt. Kiran Dua Member

The committee met 1 times during the financial year ended March 31, 2017.The attendance record of the 
members at the meeting were as follows:

Name of The Member     Designation No Meetings of Attended

Shri. Chetan Kapoor        Chairman 1

Shri. Vikram Malik         Member 1

Smt. Kiran Dua         Member 1

The details of remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2017 to the Executive Directors are as follows:

Name Designation Remuneration

Shri Hukam Chand Garg Chairman & Managing Director 21.60  Lakhs

Shri Rohit Garg Whole-Time-Director 19.20  Lakhs

Shri Atul Garg Whole-Time-Director 19.20  Lakhs

b) Terms of reference:

a) To formulate a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director.
b) Formulate criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board and whether to extend 
or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of
the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.
c) Identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in the Senior Management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down in the policy.

d) To carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance.

e) To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management.
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f ) To recommend to the Board, policy relating to remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management.

g) Ensure that level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient, relationship of remuneration to 
performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

h) To devise a policy on Board diversity.

i) To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and / or enforced by any statutory 
notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.

j) To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its duties.

D) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR) COMMITTEE:

As required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has formed a CSR committee consisting 
of the following members:

S. No. Name of Director Designation

1 Mr. Hukam Chand Garg Chairman

2 Mr. Atul Garg Member

3 Mrs. Kiran Dua Member

The committee met 1 time during the financial year ended March 31, 2017.The attendance record of the members 
at the meeting were as follows

Name of Members Designation No Meetings of Attended

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg Chairman 1

Mr. Atul Garg Member 1

Mrs. Kiran Dua Member 1

E) Risk Management Committee

The Board has voluntarily constituted a Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management Committee 
comprises of Mr. Atul Garg, Mrs. Kiran Dua, Mr Vikram Malik and Rattan lal Mittal  ( CFO)  The functions of the 
Risk Management Committee includes formulation of Risk Management Plan and to monitor and review the same 
and to report to the Board from time to time the risk assessment, minimization and mitigation procedures laid 
down. 

F) PERFORNAMCE EVALUATION COMMITTEE

The company has formed a performance evaluation committee consisting of the following members:

Name of Members Designation

Shri. Vikram Malik Chairman

Shri. Chetan Kapoor Member

Shri Hukam Chand Garg Member

The committee met 1 times during the financial year ended March 31, 2017. The attendance record of the 
members at the meeting were as follows

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017.......34



GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Name of The Member     Designation No Meetings of Attended

Shri. Vikram Malik        Chairman 1

Shri. Chetan Kapoor         Member 1

Shri Hukam Chand Garg         Member 1

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own 
performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, Appointment and 
Remuneration Committees. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs 
received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’ functioning such as adequacy of the 
composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, 
obligations and governance.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the Chairman of 
the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribution, independence of 
judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority shareholders etc. The performance 
evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board. The performance evaluation of the 
Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors who also reviewed 
the performance of the Secretarial Department. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation 
process.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS, THEIR MEETINGS AND FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME:

All requirements with respect to appointment of Independent Directors and their holding of directorships in other 
listed entities, as specified in Regulation 25 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are complied with. 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 08. 09. 2016, inter alia, to discuss:

1. Evaluation of the performance of Non Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a Whole;

2. Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive 
and Non Executive Directors.

3. Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and the Board 
that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

All the independent Directors were present at the meeting.

All Independent Directors are familiarized with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, 
nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company, etc. from time to time. 

The familiarization programme for Independent Directors has been disclosed on website of the Company at 
www.grmrice.com.

5. Subsidiary Monitoring Framework

All the subsidiary companies of the Company are Board managed. As a majority shareholder, the Board of 
Directors review and monitor the performance of its subsidiary companies by way of:

a) Approving, in principal, their capital expenditure plans, business expansion plans, investment / disinvestment 
plans;
b) Reviewing their operations vis-a-vis budgets, cash flows and Balance Sheets;
c) Reviewing all significant/ material transactions and arrangements;
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d) Minutes/ materially important decisions.

Disclosures:

(a) During the year, there were no transactions of material nature with the related parties that had potential conflict 
with the interest of the Company at large.

(b) There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company 
by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 
three years.

(c) The Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy and the same has been posted on website of the 
Company at www.grmrice.com. No employee of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Committee to 
make any representation

d) Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

(e) The Company has established a comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Policy that includes risk 
identification, risk assessment, risk mitigation and monitoring on a periodic basis. External and internal risk 
factors that could potentially affect performance of the Company vis-a-vis stated objectives are identified and 
reported in the business review meetings periodically. These are subsequently reported to the Board.

(f ) Directors’ Report has a detailed section on Management Discussion and Analysis covering inter-alia a 
separate section on Risk Management.

(g) Company files quarterly compliance report on Corporate Governance with Stock Exchanges pursuant to 
Regulation 27 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and copies thereof are placed before the next Board Meeting.

(h) As required by Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, particulars of directors seeking 
appointment/ re-appointment are given in the Notice convening the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

(i) Company has adopted discretionary requirements as specified in Para E to Schedule II to SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 to the extent to maintenance of Chairperson’s office, having separate posts of Chairperson 
and Chief Executive Officer, moving towards a regime of Financial Statements with unmodified opinion and 
reporting of Internal Auditor directly to Audit Committee.

Company’s Website and its Policies with Web links

The Company has formulated following Policies/Codes of Conduct in terms of the requirements of Companies 
Act, 2013/SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. These Policies/Codes are available on the website of the Company 
and the weblinks of these Policies/Codes are mentioned against their respective names:
a) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy: http://www.grmrice.com/pdf/CSR_POLICY.pdf 
b) Nomination & Remuneration Policy: http://www.grmrice.com/pdf/REMUNERATION%20POLICY.pdf 
c) Whistle Blower Policy (Policy on vigil mechanism) http://www.grmrice.com/pdf/VIGIL_MECHANISM.pdf
d) Policy on Related Party Transactions: http://www.grmrice.com/pdf/Related_Party_Transaction_Policy.pdf
e) Policy for determining ‘Material Subsidiaries’: http://www.grmrice.com/pdf/POLICY-FOR-DETERMINING.pdf
f ) Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management: http://www.grmrice.com/pdf/Code-of-
conduct.pdf CodeofConductforBoardMembersandSeniorManagement.pdf
g) Familiarisation programme for Independent Directors: http://www.grmrice.com/pdf/FAMILIARIZATION-
PROGRAMME.pdf
h) Code of Conduct for Insider Trading/ Code of Practices & Procedures for fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information: http://www.grmrice.com/pdf/GRM_OVERSEAS_LIMITED_Code_of_practices_fair.pdf 
i) Code Of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Insiders: 
http://www.grmrice.com/pdf/GRM_OVERSEAS_LIMITED_Code_of_practices_fair.pdf 
INTERNAL_PROCEDURES_AND_CONDUCT_FOR_REGULATING. pdf

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017.......36



GRM GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

j) Policy for preservation and archival of documents:
http://www.grmrice.com/pdf/PolicyOnPreservationOfTheDocuments.pdf

CEO/ CFO Certification (Compliance Certificate)

As required by Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, a 
Compliance Certificate from Mr. HUKAM CHAND GARG, Executive Director and Mr. RATTAN LAL MITTAL, Chief 
Financial Officer was placed before the Board of Directors at their meeting held on Aug 28, 2017.

6. SHAREHOLDERS:

a. Means of Communication:

The Quarterly Un-Audited (Provisional) Results and the Annual Audited Financial results of the company are sent 
to the stock exchanges immediately after they are approved by the Board and are also published in one 
vernacular news paper viz. "Rashtriya Ujala" and one English news paper viz. "Indian Horizon". Also they are 
uploaded on the company’s website www.grmrice.com. The results are published in accordance with the 
guidelines of the Stock Exchanges.

b. Share Transfers Agents:

M/s ABHIPRA CAPITAL LTD.
BM-1 Abhipra Complex, Dilkhush Industrial Estate, A-387 G. T. Karnal Road, Azadpur, Delhi– 110 033. Email-Id: 
rta@abhipra.com

c. Share Transfer System:
All physical share transfers are effected within 15 days of lodgment, subject to the documents being in order.

d. General Body Meetings :

Details of last three Annual General Meetings are as under.

Financial Year Date  Time  Venue

2015-2016 30-09-2016 10:30 A.M Lavanya resorts & motel, G.T Karnal Road, 
Palla Bakhtavarpur MOD, 
Alipur, Delhi-110036

2014-2015 30-09-2015 12.30 P.M Lavanya resorts & motel, G.T Karnal Road, 
Palla Bakhtavarpur MOD, 
Alipur, Delhi-110036

2013-2014 30-09-2014 10.00 A.M Hotel HMG, 209 , Harsh Vihar,
Pitampura, Delhi-110034
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e. Postal Ballot:

For the year ended March 31, 2017 there have been no ordinary or special resolutions passed by the Company’s 
Shareholders through postal ballot.

7. Additional shareholders information:

a) Annual General Meeting

Date : September 28, 2017

Venue: MH One Resort Hotel Bakoli Alipur, Main G.T. karnal Road Delhi-110036

Time :  10:30 A.M

b) Financial Calendar

Financial Year: April 01 to March 31 for the financial year 2017-18, the tentative dates for declaration of Quarterly 
unaudited results will be by Mid of August, 2017, Mid of November, 2017, Mid of February, 2018 and Mid of may, 
2018.

c) Book Closure:

The register of members and share transfer books of the company shall remain closed from September 21, 2017 
to September 28, 2017 (both days inclusive) for purpose of Annual General Meeting.

d) Dividend Payment Date:

Dividend, if declared by the Company, will be paid within 30 days of the approval of the same in the Annual 
General Meeting.

e) Listing in stock exchange and stock code

The names of stock exchanges at which the equity shares are listed, respective stock code and ISIN are as under:

Name of the stock Exchange Stock Code No. ISIN

The Bombay stock Exchange 531449 INE192H01012

f) Stock data:

High/Low of Market price of Company's equity shares traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. during the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2016 was as follows:

Month  April   May  June July Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March
2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 2017 2017 2017

Low 39.05 47.30 51.00 54.30 50.60 52.00 52.75 63.00 58.00 62.20 75.20 83.95

High 53.00 59.45 63.00 59.35 60.60 57.00 64.00 63.00 66.15 74.15 96.20 96.90
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g) Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2017.

Nominal Value of Shares No. of Share Holders % of Total Amount %of Total

Upto  Rs.  2,500
2501 to 5000      
5001  to10000       
10001 to 20000     
20001 to 30000
30001 to 40000
40001 to 50000
50001 to 100000
100001 & above

   TOTAL

350
94
58
27
7
5
4
14
14

 582

61.40
16.49
10.175
4.211
1.228
0.877
0.702
2.456
2.456

100.00

216980
369070 
490680
389740
176000
177300
186050
1103300
33785880

36895000

0.588
1.000
1.330
1.056
0.477
0.481
0.504
2.990
91.573

100.00

h)  Shares held in physical and dematerialized form:

The Company's Equity Shares have been allotted ISIN: INE192H01012 both by NSDL & CDSL. 34, 75,500 Equity 
Shares representing 94.19% of the paid-up Equity Capital of the Company have been dematerialized till 
31.03.2017.
i)   Outstanding GDR's/ADR's/Warrant’s/Convertible instruments and their impact on equity-NIL.

j) Plant Location:

1.GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED,
 Gohana Road, (Near Sugar Mill), Panipat – 132 103 (Haryana)
2.GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED,
Gohana Road, Village Naultha, Panipat – 132 103 (Haryana)

k) Address for correspondence:

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED, 128, First Floor, Shiva Market, Pitampura, Delhi - 110034.
Website: www.grmrice.com, Email: investor.grm@gmail.com 

Share Holding Pattern:

Sr.  No.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

       Category

Promoters

Banks/Financial institutions

Central/State Govt.

Indian Individuals/HUF

Indian Corporate Bodies/Trust

Mutual Funds

Non Resident Indians

 TOTAL

No. of Shares 

2716200

124000

117192

459422

99385

78300

95001

36,89,500

%of Share holding

  73.62

    3.36  

    3.18

  12.45

      2.69

     2.12

      2.58

  100.00
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Transfer of Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend Amount to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)
As per the provisions of Section 124(5) & 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to transfer 
unpaid dividends remaining unclaimed and unpaid for a period of 7 years from the due date(s) to the IEPF set up 
by the Central Govt. Further in terms of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular dated May 10, 2012, the 
Company has filed necessary details with the office of the Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana, New 
Delhi.

All Shareholders, whose dividend is unclaimed pertaining to FY 2008-09 onwards, are requested to lodge their 
claim with RTA/Company by submitting an application supported by an indemnity on or before their respective 
date of transfer to IEPF as subsequently no claim will lie against the Company, once this amount is deposited with 
IEPF. Given below are the details when the unclaimed dividend is due for transfer to IEPF by the Company:

Financial Year Date of Declaration Due date of Transfer of IEPF*

2008-09 09.09.2009 07.10.2016

2009-10 30.09.2010 28.10.2017

2010-11 30.09.2011 28.10.2018

2011-12 28.09.2012 28.10.2019

2012-13 30.09.2013 30.10.2020

2013-14 30.09.2014 30.10.2021

*Indicative date, actual may vary

7. Disclosures:

The company has not entered into any transaction of a material nature with the Promoters, the Directors or the 
Management, their relatives etc. that may have any potential conflict with the interests of the company. 

The company has complied with the requirements of the stock exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities on 
all matters related to capital markets during the last three years. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

On the Standalone Financial Statements of GRM Overseas Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED (“the 
company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash 
Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 
of the Act. 

This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true 
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2017, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
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appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2017, taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

 i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contract for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses; 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the  Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a 
statement on the matters Specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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Annexure “A”

to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of GRM Overseas Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report 
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and payments of the 
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use 
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED
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collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
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Annexure “B”
to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of GRM Overseas Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 2, under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report of 
even date)
 
(i)  In respect of its fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets on the basis of available information.

(b) As explained to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year in 
accordance with the phased programme of verification adopted by the management, which in our opinion 
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the information 
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) As per the information and explanations provided to us, title deeds of immovable properties are generally in 
the name of the Company. 

(ii)  In our opinion, the inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management at 
reasonable intervals and as explained to us no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

(iii) In respect of loans, secured or unsecured, granted by the Company to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 
2013:

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans to 
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under 
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the Order 
are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making 
investments and providing guarantees and securities.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit from 
the public. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

(vi) As informed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the activities carried on by the Company. 

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a)  According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees 
State Insurance (ESI), Income-tax, Sale Tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax 
(VAT), Cess and other material statutory dues, applicable to it, have been generally regularly deposited with 
the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2017 for a period of 
more than six months from the date of becoming payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax or Sale Tax or 
Service Tax or Custom Duty or Excise Duty or Value Added Tax which have not been deposited on account 
of any dispute.   
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(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not taken any loan from financial institution 
and has not issued debentures. 

          
(ix)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, monies raised by way of term 

loans by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

(x)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year. 

 (xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid / 
provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions 
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Clause (xii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is 
not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the   Company’s transactions 
with its related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where 
applicable, and details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial 
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully 
or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under Clause (xiv) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him and hence 
reporting under Clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to 
be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
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Balance Sheet As at 31st March, 2017

Particulars Note No.  As at
31st March, 2016

 As at
31st March, 2017

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 3  3,68,95,000.00  3,68,95,000.00

Reserves and surplus 4  38,38,57,449.18  32,79,48,201.29

 42,07,52,449.18  36,48,43,201.29

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 5  48,42,35,816.67  41,35,85,290.00

Deferred tax liabilities 6  2,25,43,303.00  2,25,94,440.00

 50,67,79,119.67  43,61,79,730.00

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings 7  1,49,61,67,744.48  90,86,03,180.27

Trade payables 8  24,18,91,668.47  11,26,70,280.07

Other current liabilities 9  32,49,13,389.87  1,23,24,911.00

 2,06,29,72,802.82  1,03,35,98,371.34

TOTAL  2,99,05,04,371.67  1,83,46,21,302.63

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 10  21,21,70,566.94  21,14,67,641.94

Long-term Investments 11  24,38,774.00 - 

Long-term loans and advances 12  69,25,431.00 69,25,431.00

Other non-current assets 13  5,39,362.00 -

 22,20,74,133.94  21,83,93,072.94

Current assets

Inventories 14  1,99,93,90,189.00  62,80,18,760.00

Trade receivables 15  74,12,80,116.60  82,38,11,489.60

Cash and Bank Balances 16  1,59,68,831.31  15,52,60,783.02

Short-term loans and advances 17  61,33,420.56  13,80,605.00

Other Current Assets 18  56,57,680.26  77,56,592.07

 2,76,84,30,237.73  1,61,62,28,229.69

TOTAL  2,99,05,04,371.67  1,83,46,21,302.63

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)

Partner

Membership No. 504338

Delhi

30th May, 2017

Sd/-
Hukam Chand Garg

Managing Director
DIN : 00673276

Sd/-
 Rohit Garg

 Whole-time-Director
DIN : 00673304
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Profit and loss statement for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Particulars Note No.
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at

31st March, 2016

Sd/-
Hukam Chand Garg

Managing Director
DIN : 00673276

Sd/-
 Rohit Garg

 Whole-time-Director
DIN : 00673304

INCOME
Revenue from operations 19
Other income 20  5,000.00 - 
Total Revenue  5,91,15,12,500.40  3,55,72,41,148.24 

EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 21  1,40,24,77,578.40  1,44,77,85,914.88 
Purchases of traded goods 22  4,31,40,13,698.55  1,41,60,18,509.54  
Changes in inventories of finished
goods and traded goods 23  -72,67,89,375.00  11,91,29,116.00 
Employee benefits expense 24  2,17,74,128.00  1,81,39,103.00 
Finance costs 25  9,85,18,312.62  9,11,96,028.80 
Depreciation and amortization expense 26  1,92,79,304.13  1,95,12,759.63 
Other expenses 27  69,75,24,653.81  41,44,20,827.28 
Total expenses 3,52,62,02,259.13 

Profit before tax  8,47,14,199.89 3,10,38,889.11 
Tax expense:
   Current tax  2,88,56,089.00 1,04,95,297.00  
   Income tax (Earlier Years) - -2,19,049.00   
   Deferred tax  -51,137.00  2,50,766.00 
Profit for the period  5,59,09,247.89  2,05,11,875.11  

 
"Earnings per equity share
(Nominal Value per share ` 10)" 28
Basic  15.15  5.56 
Diluted  15.15  5.56  

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Place : Delhi
Date : 30th May, 2017

 5,91,15,07,500.40  3,55,72,41,148.24 

 5,82,67,98,300.51
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Particulars  As at
31st March, 2017

 As at
31st March, 2016

Sd/-
Hukam Chand Garg

Managing Director
DIN : 00673276

Sd/-
 Rohit Garg

 Whole-time-Director
DIN : 00673304

Cash Flow from Opering Activities

Profit before taxation

   Adjustment for:

   Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

   Loss on sale of Tangible Assets (Net)

   Finance Costs

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in Working Capital:

“   Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables and Other   Liabilities"

   (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

   (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable and Other Assets

Cash generated from operations

   Direct tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from Investing Activities:

   Investments in Shares

   Investments in Share Application Money

   Purchase of Tangible Assets

   Sale/Receipts of Tangible Assets

   Subsidy Received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from Financing Activities

   Long term borrowings

   Short term borrowings 

   Finance Costs paid

Net Cash from Financing Activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during

the year

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise:

Cash on hand

Balance with Banks

   On Current Accounts

S.No

 8,47,14,199.89 

 1,92,79,304.13 

 4,12,471.87 

 9,85,18,312.62 

 20,29,24,288.51 

 44,18,09,867.27 

 -1,37,13,71,429.00 

 8,78,42,868.25 

 -84,17,18,693.48 

 -63,87,94,404.97 

 -2,88,56,089.00 

 -66,76,50,493.97 

 -   

 -20,33,174.00 

 -2,22,29,701.00 

 18,35,000.00 

 -   

 -2,24,27,875.00 

 7,06,50,526.67 

 58,75,64,564.21 

 -9,85,18,312.62 

 55,96,96,778.26 

 -13,03,81,590.71 

 14,53,78,901.02 

 1,49,97,310.31 

 5,57,735.84 

 1,40,33,974.47 

 3,10,38,889.11 

 1,95,12,759.63 

 -   

 9,11,96,028.80 

 14,17,47,677.54 

 -40,28,55,800.45 

 27,37,06,085.00 

 45,47,03,725.86 

 32,55,54,010.41 

 46,73,01,687.95 

 -1,03,41,815.00 

 45,69,59,872.95 

 -   

 -   

 -95,37,897.50 

 -   

 11,40,869.00 

 -83,97,028.50 

 3,94,28,562.00 

 -26,64,37,436.82 

 -9,11,96,028.80 

 -31,82,04,903.62 

 13,03,57,940.83 

 1,50,20,960.19 

 14,53,78,901.02 

 6,65,677.41 

 14,47,13,223.61 

A.

B.

C.

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra) 
Partner
Membership No. 504338

Place : Delhi
Date : 30th May, 2017



Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

1. General Information

GRM Overseas Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India, incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act and is listed on one stock exchange in India. The Company is engaged in the 
business of manufacturing and trading of Rice.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis and also to 
comply in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the 
Company’s normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of 
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its 
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities.

2.2 Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
The cost of Tangible Assets comprises cost of acquisition, construction and subsequent improvements thereto 
including taxes and duties (net of credits and draw backs), freight and other incidental expenses related to 
acquisition and installation. 

2.3 Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013.

2.4 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing Costs attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets, if any, are added to the cost 
up to the date when such assets are ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as 
expenses in the period in which these are incurred.

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

2.5 Impairment Loss

An impairment loss, if any, is recognised whenever the carrying amount of the fixed assets exceeds the 
recoverable amount i.e. the higher of the assets’ net selling price and value in use.

2.6 Inventories

Inventories other than scrap are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost is determined on 
FIFO basis. Scrap is valued at net realisable value.

2.7 Transaction in Foreign Currencies

Initial Recognition

On initial recognition, all foreign currencies transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
the transaction.

Subsequent Recognition

At the reporting date, foreign currency non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost are reported using 
the exchange rate at the date of transaction. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at 
the end of accounting period.

2.8 Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods : Sales are recognised when the substantial risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are 
transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract and are recognised net of trade discounts, rebates, sale 
taxes.

GRM
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Sale of Services : Sales are recognized upon the rendering of services.

Other items are recognized on accrual basis.

2.9 Other Income

Interest : Interest income is generally recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the rate applicable, when there is reasonable certainty as to realisation.

All other items are recognized on accrual basis.

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

2.10 Employees Benefits

The undiscounted amount of Short-term Employees Benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 
rendered by employees is recognized during the period when the employee renders the service. Contributions 
under Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognised as expenses for 
the year.

2.11 Government Grants

(a)  Government grants of the nature of promoter’ contribution are credited to Capital Reserve.

(b)  Government grants related to specific fixed assets are deducted from gross values of  related assets in 
arriving at their book values.

©  Government grants  related  to revenue are  recognised on  a  systematic  basis  in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss over the period necessary to match them with their related costs.

2.12 Taxation

Current Tax in respect of taxable income is provided for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws. Deferred 
tax is recognised subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on timing differences, 
being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable 
of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets, if any, are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date to re-assess realization.

2.13 Provision for Contingent Liabilities

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably 
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of  the obligation. A disclosure 
for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably 
will not, require an outflow of resources or there is a present obligation, reliable estimate of the amount of which 
cannot be made. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of 
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure for contingent liability is made.

2.14 Cash and Cash Equivalent

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with anks, other 
short-term highly liquid investments, if any, with original maturities of three months or less.

2.15 Earning Per Share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of 
calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and 
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.

GRM
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3. Share Capital In Rupees

Particulars

Authorised
Equity Shares of  10 each 7000000  7,00,00,000.00 7000000  7,00,00,000.00 

Issued
Equity Shares of ` 10 each 3689500  3,68,95,000.00 3689500  3,68,95,000.00 

Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of  ` 10 each fully paid 3689500  3,68,95,000.00 3689500  3,68,95,000.00  

Total 3689500  3,68,95,000.00 3689500  3,68,95,000.00

`

Number Amount(Rs) Number Amount(Rs)
As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

(a) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares issued:

     The Company has  only one class of equity shares  having a  par value  of  10  per share. Each   shareholder 
is  eligible  for  one vote per share  held. The  dividend  if proposed  by  the Board  of  Directors  is subject  to 
the approval of  the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except  in case of interim dividend. 
In  the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive  the remaining assets of  the 
Company after distribution of  all  preferential amounts, in   proportion to their shareholding.

(b) Detail  of  shares  held  by  shareholders  holding  more  than 5%  of the aggregate shares  in the  Company.

` 

Name of Shareholder 

Hukam Chand Garg

Rohit Garg

Atul Garg

As at 31st March 2017

No. of Shares held % of Holding 

As at 31st March 2016

No. of Shares held % of Holding 

1000200

858000

858000

27.11%

23.25%

23.25%

1556200

1090000

Nil

42.18%

29.54%

Nil

4. Reserve and Surplus

Investment Allowance Reserve

Securities Premium Account

Forfieture Share Capital Reserve

Forfieture Share Premium Reserve

Revaluation Reserve

General Reserve

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Profit for the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Total

Particulars

 16,215.00 

 68,95,000.00 

 59,08,495.00 

 59,08,495.00 

 1,94,85,409.00 

 5,44,57,325.69 

 23,52,77,261.60 

 5,58,68,351.89 

 29,11,45,613.49 

 38,38,16,553.18 

“As at31st March 2017"

 16,215.00 

 68,95,000.00 

 59,08,495.00 

 59,08,495.00 

 1,94,85,409.00 

 5,44,57,325.69 

 21,47,65,386.49 

 2,05,11,875.11 

 23,52,77,261.60 

 32,79,48,201.29 

“As at31st March 2016"

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017.......52



GRM

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

5. Long-term Borrowings

Secured :

Term Loans

Indian rupee loans from bank  94,41,096.67 -

Unsecured :

Inter-corporate loans (Indian rupee loans)  38,55,22,812.00  35,48,39,117.00  

Loans from related parties (Indian rupee loans)  8,92,71,908.00  5,87,46,173.00 

Total  48,42,35,816.67  41,35,85,290.00  

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

6. Deferred Tax Liabilities

Components of Deferred Tax Liability

Balance as at the beginning of the year  2,25,94,440.00  2,23,43,674.00  

Difference in Depreciation :

As per Income Tax Laws  14,39,87,694.50  14,31,30,103.50 

Less : Depreciation as per books of account  21,21,70,566.94  21,14,67,641.94  

Difference in Depreciation :  6,81,82,872.44  6,83,37,538.44  

Rate of Income Tax 33.063% 33.063%

Deferred Tax Charge  -51,137.00  2,50,766.00  

Balance as at the end of the year  2,25,43,303.00  2,25,94,440.00

Particulars

7. Short Term Borrowings

Particulars

Secured:

Loans repayable on demand

Borrowings from banks  1,49,61,67,744.48  90,86,03,180.27

Total  1,49,61,67,744.48  90,86,03,180.27

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Cash  credits  from  bank are secured by hypothecation of stocks  of raw materials, stock in process,  finished 
goods, stores,  consumable stores  and  book debts etc; such  credits from bank  are  also secured  by  charge on  
all the present and future assets  of  the Company  and  further guaranteed  by Directors. The working capital 
loans are repayable on demand and carries interest @ 5% to 7% per annum.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017.......53

“Indian rupee loans  from bank includes (i)  26,75,201/- which carries interest @ 9.50% per annum. This  loan is 
repayable  in 36 equated monthly  installments of  ̀  1,27,680/- each  including interest from the date of loan. The 
loan is secured against hypothecation of Motor Car.(ii) ̀  67,65,895/- which carries interest @ 9.52% per annum. 
This loan is repayable in 36 equated monthly installments of  ̀  2,54,320/- each including interest from the date of 
loan. The loan is secured against hypothecation of Motor Car. “

Indian rupee loans from corporates and related parties carries interest @ 9% per annum. Interest is payable on 
yearly basis.

`
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8. Trade Payables

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

Trade Payables

Total

 24,18,91,668.47 

 24,18,91,668.47 

 11,26,70,280.07 
 
11,26,70,280.07 

9. Other Current Liabilities

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

Advance from parties

Employees Benefits payable

Statutory dues:

  T.D.S. Payable

  Provident Fund

  E.S.I.

Other Payables:

  Electricity Expenses

  Audit & Legal Fees

  Telephone Expenses

Total

 31,19,77,861.87 

 7,53,849.00

 

 66,40,162.00 

 1,90,358.00 

 45,473.00 

 52,21,686.00 

 84,000.00 

 -

  32,49,13,389.87 

 

- 

 9,52,714.00

 

 49,15,297.00 

 62,651.00 

 10,309.00 

 62,83,799.00 

 67,500.00 

 32,641.00   

  1,23,24,911.00 
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13. Other Non-Current Assets

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good unless stated
otherwise
Long term deposits with bank with maturity
period more than 12 months:
Margin money deposits
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Total

-
-
-

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

14. Inventories 

Raw Materials and components
Finished goods
Traded goods

Total

 87,96,98,780.00 
 51,81,61,239.00 
 60,15,30,170.00 

 
1,99,93,90,189.00 

 23,51,16,726.00 
 29,02,59,259.00 
 10,26,42,775.00 

 
62,80,18,760.00 

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

15. Trade Receivables

Unsecured, considered good unless stated
otherwise
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they became due for payment

Other Receivables

Total
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 5,26,224.00 
 13,138.00 

 5,39,362.00 

 10,28,67,887.00 
 10,28,67,887.00 

 63,84,12,229.60 

 63,84,12,229.60 

 74,12,80,116.60

 86,15,795.00 
 86,15,795.00 

 81,51,95,694.60 

 81,51,95,694.60 

 82,38,11,489.60 
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17. Short-term Loans and Advances

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Advances against procurement of goods, services etc.

Other Loans and Advances:

    Prepaid Insurance

    Advance Taxes (Netted off provision for taxes)

    Income Tax Refundable

Total

 45,69,445.56 

 13,80,015.00 

 33,140.00 

 1,50,820.00 

 61,33,420.56 

 95,754.00 

 11,34,031.00 

 45,730.00 

 1,05,090.00 

 13,80,605.00 

18. Other Current Assets

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

V.A.T. Receivable

Interest accrued on deposits

Total

 53,33,204.26 

 3,24,476.00 

 56,57,680.26 

 59,84,715.07 

 17,71,877.00 

 77,56,592.07 

19. Revenue from Operations

Particulars

Particulars

(i)  Sale of products

      Rice

      Others

Total

 5,82,49,40,352.55 

 8,65,67,147.85 

 5,91,15,07,500.40 

 3,48,56,72,641.69 

 7,15,68,506.55 

 3,55,72,41,148.24 

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

16. Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
   Cash in hand
   Bank Balances
       On current accounts

Other Bank Balances
Deposits with original maturity for more than 3
months but less than 12 months:
Margin money deposits
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity

Total

 5,57,735.84 

 1,40,33,974.47 
 1,45,91,710.31 

 12,51,185.00 
 1,25,936.00 

 13,77,121.00
 

 1,59,68,831.31 

 6,65,677.41 

 14,47,13,223.61 
 14,53,78,901.02

 
11,69,516.00 

 87,12,366.00 
 98,81,882.00 

 
15,52,60,783.02 
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22. Purchase of Traded Goods

Particulars

Rice

Total

23. Change in Inventories of Finished Goods and Traded Goods

Particulars

Finished Goods

Opening Stock

Deduct : Closing Stock

Traded Goods

Opening Stock

Deduct : Closing Stock

(Increase) / Decrease in stocks

24. Employee Benefit Expense

Particulars

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Contributions to -

(i) Provident fund

(ii) E.S.I.

Total

 4,31,40,13,698.55

 4,31,40,13,698.55

 1,41,60,18,509.54

 1,41,60,18,509.54 

 29,02,59,259.00 

 51,81,61,239.00 

 -22,79,01,980.00 

 10,26,42,775.00 

 60,15,30,170.00 

 -49,88,87,395.00 

 -72,67,89,375.00 

 24,55,71,670.00 

 29,02,59,259.00 

 -4,46,87,589.00 

 26,64,59,480.00 

 10,26,42,775.00 

 16,38,16,705.00 

 11,91,29,116.00 

 2,06,04,357.00 

 9,37,310.00 

 2,32,461.00 

 2,17,74,128.00 

 1,74,18,296.00 

 6,18,464.00 

 1,02,343.00 

 1,81,39,103.00 

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017

20. Other Income

Particulars

Other Income

Total

 5,000.00 

 5,000.00 

-

-

21. Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars

Opening Stock

Add : Purchases

Total

Deduct : Closing Stock

Cost of materials consumed

 23,51,16,726.00 

 2,04,70,59,632.40 

 2,28,21,76,358.40 

 87,96,98,780.00 

 1,40,24,77,578.40 

 38,96,93,695.00 

 1,29,32,08,945.88 

 1,68,29,02,640.88 

 23,51,16,726.00 

 1,44,77,85,914.88 

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017



25. Finance Costs

Particulars

Interest expenses

Bank Charges

Total

 8,54,46,028.97 

 1,30,72,283.65 

 9,85,18,312.62 

26. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Particulars

Depreciation on Tangible Assets

Total

 8,16,11,795.78 

 95,84,233.02 

 9,11,96,028.80 

 1,92,79,304.13

 1,92,79,304.13 

 1,95,12,759.63

 1,95,12,759.63 

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017

GRM

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

27. Other Expenses

Particulars

Power and Fuel

Repairs to Machinery

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts

Electric Repairs

Repairs to Building

Rent

Export Promotion Expenses

Rates and Taxes

Insurance

Freight, Transport and Delivery

Shipping & Forwarding

Packing Expenses

Rebate & Discounts

Travelling Expenses

Entertainment Expenses

Conveyance Expenses

Printing & Stationery

Postage & Courier

Advertisement

Payment to auditor (Refer details below)

Professional Charges

Commission

Telephone Expenses

Vehicles Running Expenses

Income Tax / Wealth Tax

Loss on sale of tangible assets

Other Expenses (CSR)

Miscellaneous Expenses

Total

 6,85,14,172.00 

 1,35,45,565.18 

 53,54,670.09 

 16,71,301.77 

 12,15,796.00 

 49,17,788.86 

 -   

 6,46,98,004.50 

 41,87,287.25 

 12,94,13,093.04 

 23,40,99,945.16 

 13,89,85,894.13 

 21,68,088.71 

 36,74,154.00 

 2,54,700.00 

 2,87,745.00 

 2,23,186.00 

 12,50,031.00 

 50,975.00 

 92,000.00 

 14,18,706.00 

 1,78,40,869.00 

 4,23,233.00 

 10,36,195.44 

 1,80,488.00 

 4,12,471.87 

 12,00,000.00 

 4,08,292.81 

 69,75,24,653.81 

 6,04,51,961.00 

 1,03,12,056.13 

 48,14,200.48 

 13,92,374.97 

 4,68,973.00 

 30,10,282.00 

 21,53,788.00 

 4,09,50,024.00 

 34,72,929.25 

 9,22,81,122.30 

 11,72,27,557.09 

 6,01,71,556.22 

 26,77,965.84 

 15,71,700.00 

 2,15,411.00 

 2,15,100.00 

 1,79,736.00 

 5,56,190.00 

 2,58,657.00 

 75,000.00 

 3,77,359.00 

 92,24,675.00 

 3,85,979.00 

 6,00,565.00 

 -   

 -   

 12,00,000.00 

 1,75,665.00 

 41,44,20,827.28 
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Payment to auditor

Particulars

As auditor:

Audit Fee

Tax Audit Fee

Other matters (Certificates, Tax etc.)

Total

 50,000.00 

 20,000.00 

 22,000.00 

 92,000.00 

 50,000.00 

 15,000.00 

 10,000.00 

 75,000.00 

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017

GRM

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

28. Computation of Earning per Equity Shar

Particulars

(I) Basic

(a) (i) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning

          of the year

     (ii) Number of Equity Shares issued during

          the period

     (iii) Number of Equity Shares at the end of

           the period

     (iv) Weighted average number of Equity

           Shares outstanding during the period

     (v) Face Value of each Equity Share `

(b) Profit after tax attributable to Equity Share-

     holders:

     Profit for the period

(c) Basic Earning per share [(b)/(a)(iv)] - `

(II) Diluted

(a) Dilutive Potential Equity Shares

(b) Diluted Earning per Share [same as I (c) above]

 36,89,500.00 

 Nil 

 36,89,500.00 

 36,89,500.00 

 10.00 

 5,59,09,247.89 

 15.15 

 -   

 15.15 

 36,89,500.00 

 Nil 

 36,89,500.00 

 36,89,500.00 

 10.00 

 2,05,11,875.11 

 5.56 

 -   

 5.56 

29. Earnings in Foreign Currency (accrual basis)

Particulars

Revenue from Export of Goods 

Total

 5,34,56,23,760.71 

 5,34,56,23,760.71 

 3,00,54,52,034.67 

 3,00,54,52,034.67 
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Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Year ended
31st March, 2016

Year ended
31st March, 2017
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

30. Quantitative information:-
Stock, production, purchase and turnover (Quantities in Qtls. and Values in Rupees)

Current Year Previous YearParticulars

Opening Stock
Rice 1,22,040.260 38,78,60,931.00 1,26,326.780 50,51,98,378.00
Paddy 1,22,754.720  22,73,41,741.00 1,40,463.650 38,34,65,765.00
Rice Bran 2,426.690  24,77,653.00 4,252.313 42,69,322.00
Packing Materials - 77,74,985.00 - 62,27,930.00
Others - 25,63,450.00 - 25,63,450.00

Total 62,80,18,760.00 90,17,24,845.00

Production/Purchase
Rice (Produced) 3,71,918.000 - 3,83,323.000 -
Rice (Purchased) 9,53,378.015   4,31,40,13,698.55 3,72,911.350 1,41,60,18,509.54
Paddy (Purchased) 7,71,547.030 1,92,26,41,411.80 5,70,564.460 1,22,13,01,237.83

Sales
Rice 11,45,320.379 5,82,49,40,352.55 7,60,126.776 3,48,56,72,641.69

Raw Materials Consumed
Paddy (Milled) 5,71,896.040 - 5,88,273.390 -
Closing Stock
Rice 3,01,456.896 1,11,41,87,229.00 1,22,040.260 38,78,60,931.00
Paddy 3,22,405.710 86,40,47,303.00 1,22,754.720 22,73,41,741.00
Rice Bran 2,814.100 29,40,730.00 2,426.690 24,77,653.00
Packing Materials - 1,56,51,477.00 - 77,74,985.00
Others - 25,63,450.00 - 25,63,450.00

Total 1,99,93,90,189.00 62,80,18,760.00

Shortages :
Rice 559.000 - 394.094 -
Paddy - - - -

Quantity Value Quantity Value
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

31. Related party disclosures pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 prescribed under the Act.

a. Loans taken and repayment thereof
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Key management

personnel or their 

relatives:

Hukam Chand Garg  6,01,50,000         5,66,99,669   58,88,866     5,48,39,123

Rohit Garg  6,28,75,390         4,74,03,647   25,15,315     2,11,15,221

Atul Garg  5,10,00,000         4,93,57,028      15,56,508     1,33,17,564

Companies in which
directors or their
relatives are interested:

Alfa Technobuild Pvt. Ltd. 1,30,00,000 1,40,79,958 32,79,196 4,65,44,687

HA Buildtech Pvt. Ltd. 1,05,50,000 1,41,14,506   17,13,879       2,43,03,746

Paras Infraprojects Pvt. Ltd. 6,00,000     9,93,712   47,10,183     6,27,74,136

Prestige Infraprojects Pvt. Ltd. 1,70,00,000 1,67,62,741 28,45,642     4,08,68,115

Samarth Technobuild Pvt. Ltd. 5,25,51,500  2,62,91,730   53,04,417     7,22,65,168

Eros Agro & Farms Pvt. Ltd. 1,01,00,000 11,07,778   48,39,574     7,38,22,401

Rohit Buildtech Pvt. Ltd. 20,00,000 9,66,273   29,14,205     3,88,80,860

Shine Technobuild Pvt. Ltd.         1,24,77,850   81,38,350   13,28,810     2,60,63,699

b. Remuneration to key managerial personnel

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg (Managing Direcor)      21,60,000 25,80,000

Mr. Rohit Garg (Whole time Director) 19,20,000  21,60,000

Mr. Atul Garg (Whole time Director)  19,20,000 21,60,000

Mr. Ratan Lal Mittal (CFO)  3,00,000 3,00,000

Mr. Vijay Kumar Dwivedi (Company Secretary) - 2,52,000

Ms. Tanushree Aggarwal (Company Secretary)   60,000 -

Total 63,60,000 74,52,000

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Year ended 
31st March, 2016

Particulars

Interest Amount owed by
Particulars Loans taken         Repayment       Accrued the parties
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Hukam Chand Garg 6,00,000 6,00,000

Rohit Garg 2,70,000 2,70,000

Hukam Chand Garg HUF 4,50,000 4,50,000

Jugpati Devi 6,00,000 6,00,000

Total 19,20,000 19,20,000

32. No information has been received by the Company from the creditors whether they are 
covered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

c. Rent to key management personnel or their relatives

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Year ended 
31st March, 2016

Particulars

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Delhi
30th May, 2017 

 Hukam Chand Garg
Managing Director

DIN:  00673276

Rohit Garg
Whole-time-Director

DIN : 00673304

Signature to notes 1 to 32 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

On the Consolidated Financial Statements of GRM Overseas Limited
TO THE MEMBERS OF GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as “the Group”), its associates and jointly controlled entities, comprising of the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated 
financial statements”). 
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other 
comprehensive income and consolidated cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associates and jointly controlled 
entities are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provision of the 
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,  relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing 
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding 
Company’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s 
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the 
consideration of reports of other auditors, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information 
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
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principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its associates and jointly 
controlled entities as at March 31, 2017, and their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books 
and the reports of the other auditor. 

c)  The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income) and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt    with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated 
financial statements.

d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act.

e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 
31, 2017, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and of its subsidiary 
companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies, none of the directors is disqualified as 
on March 31, 2017, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

i. The Holding Company and of its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled entities, 
does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii. The Holding Company and of its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled entities, 
did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contract for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses; 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the  Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities.
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(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner
Membership No. 504338 

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

Place : Delhi
Date : 30.05.2017
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Annexure “A”

to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of GRM Overseas Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our Report 
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company as of and for the 
year ended March 31, 2017, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GRM 
OVERSEAS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its associates and jointly controlled entities.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associates, and jointly controlled 
entities are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by these entities, considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associates and jointly 
controlled entities, internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the other auditors in terms of their reports is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, associates and 
jointly controlled entities, internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control 
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and payments of the 
Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use 
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the 
consideration of reports of other auditors, the Holding Company its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled 
entities, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies, considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.
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(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner
Membership No. 504338 

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

Place : Delhi
Date : 30.05.2017
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2017

Particulars Note No.
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at

31st March, 2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ funds

Share capital 3 3,68,95,000.00  3,68,95,000.00 

Reserves and surplus 4 38,38,16,553.18  32,79,48,201.29 

    42,07,11,553.18  36,48,43,201.29 

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings 5  48,42,35,816.67  41,35,85,290.00 

Deferred tax liabilities 6  2,25,43,303.00  2,25,94,440.00 

 50,67,79,119.67  43,61,79,730.00 

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings 7  1,49,61,67,744.48  90,86,03,180.27 

Trade payables 8  25,17,33,745.47  11,26,70,280.07 

Other Current liabilities 9  32,52,58,149.87  1,23,24,911.00 

 2,07,31,59,639.82  1,03,35,98,371.34 

TOTAL  3,00,06,50,312.67  1,83,46,21,302.63 

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

Tangible assets 10  21,21,70,566.94  21,14,67,641.94 

Long-term loans and advances 11  69,25,431.00 69,25,431.00

Other non-current assets 12  5,39,362.00 -

 21,96,35,359.94 21,83,93,072.94 

Current assets

Inventories 13  2,01,03,50,686.00  62,80,18,760.00  

Trade receivables 14  74,12,80,116.60  82,38,11,489.60  

Cash and Bank Balances 15  1,75,93,049.31  15,52,60,783.02 

Short-term loans and advances 16  61,33,420.56  13,80,605.00 

Other Current Assets 17  56,57,680.26  77,56,592.07 

 2,78,10,14,952.73  1,61,62,28,229.69 

TOTAL  3,00,06,50,312.67  1,83,46,21,302.63  

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra) 
Partner
Membership No. 504338

Place : Delhi
Date : 30th May, 2017

Sd/-
Hukam Chand Garg

Managing Director
DIN : 00673276

Sd/-
 Rohit Garg

 Whole-time-Director
DIN : 00673304
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GRM

Profit and loss statement for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Particulars Note No.
 As at

31st March, 2017
 As at

31st March, 2016

 

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra) 
Partner
Membership No. 504338

Place : Delhi
Date : 30th May, 2017

 

Sd/-
Hukam Chand Garg

Managing Director
DIN : 00673276

Sd/-
 Rohit Garg

 Whole-time-Director
DIN : 00673304

INCOME

Revenue from operations 18  5,91,15,07,500.40  3,55,72,41,148.24

Other income 19  5,000.00 -

Total Revenue  5,91,15,12,500.40  3,55,72,41,148.24  

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 20  1,40,24,77,578.40  1,44,77,85,914.88 

Purchases of traded goods 21  4,32,38,43,336.55  1,41,60,18,509.54  

Changes in inventories of finished goods

and traded goods 22  -73,77,49,872.00  11,91,29,116.00 

Employee benefits expense 23  2,17,74,128.00  1,81,39,103.00 

Finance costs 24  9,82,14,449.62  9,11,96,028.80  

Depreciation and amortization expense 25  1,92,79,304.13  1,95,12,759.63 

Other expenses 26  69,90,00,271.81  41,44,20,827.28 

Total expenses  5,82,68,39,196.51  3,52,62,02,259.13 

Profit before tax  8,46,73,303.89  3,10,38,889.11 

Tax expense:

   Current tax  2,88,56,089.00  1,04,95,297.00 

   Income tax (Earlier Years) - -2,19,049.00 
   Deferred tax  -51,137.00  2,50,766.00  

Profit for the period

"Earnings per equity share  5,58,68,351.89  2,05,11,875.11  

(Nominal Value per share ` 10)" 27  

Basic 15.14  5.56 

Diluted 15.14  5.56 
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GRM

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2017

Particulars  As at
31st March, 2017

 As at
31st March, 2016

Sd/-
Hukam Chand Garg

Managing Director
DIN : 00673276

Sd/-
 Rohit Garg

 Whole-time-Director
DIN : 00673304

Cash Flow from Opering Activities

Profit before taxation

   Adjustment for:

   Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

   Loss on sale of Tangible Assets (Net)

   Finance Costs

Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in Working Capital:

"   Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables and Other   Liabilities"

   (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

   (Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivable and Other Assets

Cash generated from operations

   Direct tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from Investing Activities:

   Purchase of Tangible Assets

   Sale/Receipts of Tangible Assets

   Subsidy Received

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from Financing Activities

   Long term borrowings

   Short term borrowings 

   Finance Costs paid

Net Cash from Financing Activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during

the year

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and Cash equivalents comprise:

Cash on hand

Balance with Banks

   On Current Accounts

S.No

As per our report of even date

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra) 
Partner
Membership No. 504338

Place : Delhi
Date : 30th May, 2017

 8,46,73,303.89 

 1,92,79,304.13 

 4,12,471.87 

 9,82,14,449.62 

 20,25,79,529.51 

 45,19,96,704.27 

 -1,38,23,31,926.00 

 8,78,42,868.25 

 -84,24,92,353.48 

 -63,99,12,823.97 

 -2,88,56,089.00 

 -66,87,68,912.97 

 -2,22,29,701.00 

 18,35,000.00 

 -   

 -2,03,94,701.00 

 7,06,50,526.67 

 58,75,64,564.21 

 -9,82,14,449.62 

 56,00,00,641.26 

 -12,91,62,972.71 

 14,53,78,901.02 

 1,62,15,928.31 

 5,57,735.84 

 1,56,58,192.47 

 3,10,38,889.11 

 1,95,12,759.63 

 -   

 9,11,96,028.80 

 14,17,47,677.54 

 -40,28,55,800.45 

 27,37,06,085.00 

 45,47,03,725.86 

 32,55,54,010.41 

 46,73,01,687.95 

 -1,03,41,815.00 

 45,69,59,872.95 

 -95,37,897.50 

 -   

 11,40,869.00 

 -83,97,028.50 

 3,94,28,562.00 

 -26,64,37,436.82 

 -9,11,96,028.80 

 -31,82,04,903.62 

 13,03,57,940.83 

 1,50,20,960.19 

 14,53,78,901.02 

 6,65,677.41 

 14,47,13,223.61 

A.

B.

C.
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GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

1. General Information

GRM Overseas Limited (the ‘Company’) is a public limited company domiciled in India, incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act and is listed on one stock exchange in India. The Company is engaged in the 
business of manufacturing and trading of Rice. 

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis and also to 
comply in all material aspects with the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

The consolidated financial statements are Group’s first consolidated financial statements. The Company’s 
consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (`).

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities.

2.2 Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to GRM Overseas Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiary 
companies, associates entities. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following 
basis:

(a) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line basis by adding together 
like items of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and 
intra-group transactions.

(b) Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory and 
property are eliminated in full.

(c) In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. 
All assets and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year.

(d) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of 
equity of each subsidiary.

2.3 Fixed Assets

Tangible Assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
The cost of Tangible Assets comprises cost of acquisition, construction and subsequent improvements thereto 
including taxes and duties (net of credits and draw backs), freight and other incidental expenses related to 
acquisition and installation. 

2.4 Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013.
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2.5 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing Costs attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets, if any, are             added to 
the cost up to the date when such assets are ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised 
as expenses in the period in which these are incurred.

2.6 Impairment Loss

An impairment loss, if any, is recognised whenever the carrying amount of the fixed assets exceeds the 
recoverable amount i.e. the higher of the assets’ net selling price and value in use.

2.7 Inventories

Inventories other than scrap are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost is determined on 
FIFO basis. Scrap is valued at net realisable value.

2.8 Transaction in Foreign Currencies

Initial Recognition
On initial recognition, all foreign currencies transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of 
the transaction.

Subsequent Recognition
At the reporting date, foreign currency non-monetary items carried in terms of historical cost are reported using 
the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting period.

2.9 Revenue Recognition

Sale of Goods : Sales are recognised when the substantial risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are 
transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract and are recognised net of trade discounts, rebates, sale 
taxes.

Sale of Services : Sales are recognized upon the rendering of services.

Other items are recognized on accrual basis.

2.10 Other Income

Interest : Interest income is generally recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the rate applicable, when there is reasonable certainty as to realisation.

All other items are recognized on accrual basis.

2.11 Employees Benefits

The undiscounted amount of Short-term Employees Benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services 
rendered by employees is recognized during the period when the employee renders the service. Contributions 
under Defined Contribution Plans payable in keeping with the related schemes are recognised as expenses for 
the year.
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2.12 Government Grants

(a)  Government grants of the nature of promoter’ contribution are credited to Capital Reserve.
(b)  Government grants related to specific fixed assets are deducted from gross values of  related assets   
       in arriving at their book values.
(c)  Government grants  related  to revenue are  recognised on  a  systematic  basis  in the Statement of  
      Profit and Loss over the period necessary to match them with their related costs.

2.13 Taxation

Current Tax in respect of taxable income is provided for the year based on applicable tax rates and laws. Deferred 
tax is recognised subject to the consideration of prudence in respect of deferred tax assets, on timing differences, 
being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable 
of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets, if any, are reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date to re-assess realization.

2.14 Provision for Contingent Liabilities

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event that probably 
requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure 
for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably 
will not, require an outflow of resources or there is a present obligation, reliable estimate of the amount of which 
cannot be made. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation and the likelihood of outflow of 
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure for contingent liability is made.

2.15 Cash and Cash Equivalent

In the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits 
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments, if any, with original maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Earning Per Share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of 
calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and 
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 
potential equity shares.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

GRM

3. Share Capital In  `

Particulars

Authorised
Equity Shares of ` 10 each 7000000  7,00,00,000.00 7000000  7,00,00,000.00 

Issued
Equity Shares of ` 10 each 3689500  3,68,95,000.00 3689500  3,68,95,000.00 

Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of  ` 10 each fully paid 3689500  3,68,95,000.00 3689500  3,68,95,000.00  

Total 3689500  3,68,95,000.00 3689500  3,68,95,000.00

Number Amount(Rs) Number Amount(Rs)
As at 31st March 2017 As at 31st March 2016

(a) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to shares issued:

     The Company has  only one class of equity shares  having a  par value  of 10  per share. Each  shareholder 
is  eligible  for  one vote per share  held. The  dividend  if proposed  by  the Board  of  Directors  is subject  to 
the approval of  the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except  in case of interim dividend. 
In  the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive  the remaining assets of  the 
Company after distribution of  all  preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(b) Detail  of  shares  held  by  shareholders  holding  more  than 5%  of the aggregate shares  in the  Company.

 ̀

Name of Shareholder 

Hukam Chand Garg

Rohit Garg

Atul Garg

As at 31st March 2017

No. of Shares held % of Holding 

As at 31st March 2016

No. of Shares held % of Holding 

1000200

858000

858000

27.11%

23.25%

23.25%

1556200

1090000

NIL

42.18%

29.54%

NIL

4. Reserve and Surplus

Investment Allowance Reserve

Securities Premium Account

Forfieture Share Capital Reserve

Forfieture Share Premium Reserve

Revaluation Reserve

General Reserve

Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Profit for the year

Balance as at the end of the year

Total

Particulars

 16,215.00 

 68,95,000.00 

 59,08,495.00 

 59,08,495.00 

 1,94,85,409.00 

 5,44,57,325.69 

 23,52,77,261.60 

 5,58,68,351.89 

 29,11,45,613.49 

 38,38,16,553.18 

“As at
31st March 2017"

 16,215.00 

 68,95,000.00 

 59,08,495.00 

 59,08,495.00 

 1,94,85,409.00 

 5,44,57,325.69 

 21,47,65,386.49 

 2,05,11,875.11 

 23,52,77,261.60 

 32,79,48,201.29 

“As at
31st March 2016"
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

5. Long-term Borrowings

Secured :

Term Loans

Indian rupee loans from bank  94,41,096.67 -

Unsecured :

Inter-corporate loans (Indian rupee loans)  38,55,22,812.00  35,48,39,117.00  

Loans from related parties (Indian rupee loans)  8,92,71,908.00  5,87,46,173.00 

Total  48,42,35,816.67  41,35,85,290.00  

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

6. Deferred Tax Liabilities

Components of Deferred Tax Liability

Balance as at the beginning of the year  2,25,94,440.00  2,23,43,674.00  

Difference in Depreciation :

As per Income Tax Laws  14,39,87,694.50  14,31,30,103.50 

Less : Depreciation as per books of account  21,21,70,566.94  21,14,67,641.94  

Difference in Depreciation :  6,81,82,872.44  6,83,37,538.44  

Rate of Income Tax 33.063% 33.063%

Deferred Tax Charge  -51,137.00  2,50,766.00  

Balance as at the end of the year  2,25,43,303.00  2,25,94,440.00

Particulars

7. Short Term Borrowings

Particulars

Secured:

Loans repayable on demand

Borrowings from banks  1,49,61,67,744.48  90,86,03,180.27  

Total  1,49,61,67,744.48  90,86,03,180.27 

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Cash  credits  from  bank are secured by hypothecation of stocks  of raw materials, stock in process,  finished 
goods, stores,  consumable stores  and  book debts etc; such  credits from bank  are  also secured  by  charge on  
all the present and future assets  of  the Company  and  further guaranteed  by Directors. The working capital 
loans are repayable on demand and carries interest @ 5% to 7% per annum.

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017.......75

Indian rupee loans  from bank includes (i) ̀  26,75,201/- which carries interest @ 9.50% per annum. This  loan is 
repayable  in 36 equated monthly  installments of ̀ 1,27,680/- each  including interest from the date of loan. The 
loan is secured against hypothecation of Motor Car.

(ii) ` 67,65,895/- which carries interest @ 9.52% per annum. This loan is repayable in 36 equated monthly 
installments of ` 2,54,320/- each including interest from the date of loan. The loan is secured against 
hypothecation of Motor Car. 
Indian rupee loans from corporates and related parties carries interest @ 9% per annum. Interest is payable on 
yearly basis.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

8. Trade Payables

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

Trade Payables

Total

 25,17,33,745.47 

 25,17,33,745.47 

 11,26,70,280.07 

 11,26,70,280.07 

9. Other Current Liabilities

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

Advance from parties

Employees Benefits payable

Statutory dues:

  T.D.S. Payable

  Provident Fund

  E.S.I.

Other Payables:

  Electricity Expenses

  Audit & Legal Fees

  Telephone Expenses

  Professional Charges

Total

 31,19,77,861.87 

 7,53,849.00 

 66,40,162.00 

 1,90,358.00 

 45,473.00 

 52,21,686.00 

 84,000.00 

 -   

 3,44,760.00 

 32,52,58,149.87 

 -   

 9,52,714.00 

 

49,15,297.00 

 62,651.00 

 10,309.00 

 62,83,799.00 

 67,500.00 

 32,641.00 

 -   

 1,23,24,911.00 
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

12. Other Non-Current Assets

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Long Term Deposits with bank with maturity period
More then 12 months
Margin money deposits
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Total

 5,26,224.00 
 13,138.00

 5,39,362.00 -

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

13. Inventories 

Raw Materials and components
Finished goods
Traded goods

Total

 87,96,98,780.00 
 51,81,61,239.00 
 61,24,90,667.00 

 
2,01,03,50,686.00 

23,51,16,726.00 
 29,02,59,259.00 
 10,26,42,775.00 

 
62,80,18,760.00 

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

14. Trade Receivables

Unsecured, considered good unless stated
otherwise
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they became due for payment

Other Receivables

Total

 10,28,67,887.00 
 10,28,67,887.00 

 63,84,12,229.60 

 63,84,12,229.60 

 74,12,80,116.60 

 86,15,795.00 
 86,15,795.00 

 81,51,95,694.60 

 81,51,95,694.60 

 82,38,11,489.60 

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

15. Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

   Cash in hand

   Bank Balances

       On current accounts

Other Bank Balances

Deposits with original maturity for more than 3

months but less than 12 months:

Margin money deposits

Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity

Total
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 5,57,735.84 

 1,56,58,192.47 

 1,62,15,928.31 

 12,51,185.00 

 1,25,936.00 

 13,77,121.00 

 1,75,93,049.31 

   

 6,65,677.41 

 14,47,13,223.61 

 14,53,78,901.02 

 11,69,516.00 

 87,12,366.00 

 98,81,882.00 

 15,52,60,783.02 

-
-
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

16. Short-term Loans and Advances

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Advances against procurement of goods, services etc.

Other Loans and Advances:

    Prepaid Insurance

    Advance Taxes (Netted off provision for taxes)

    Income Tax Refundable

Total

 45,69,445.56 

 13,80,015.00 

 33,140.00 

 1,50,820.00 

 61,33,420.56 

 95,754.00 

 11,34,031.00 

 45,730.00 

 1,05,090.00 

 13,80,605.00 

17. Other Current Assets

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

V.A.T. Receivable

Interest accrued on deposits

Total

 53,33,204.26 

 3,24,476.00 

 56,57,680.26 

 59,84,715.07 

 17,71,877.00 

 77,56,592.07 

18. Revenue from Operations

Particulars

(i)  Sale of products

      Rice

      Others

Total

 5,82,49,40,352.55 

 8,65,67,147.85 

 5,91,15,07,500.40 

 3,48,56,72,641.69 

 7,15,68,506.55 

 3,55,72,41,148.24 

19. Other Income

Particulars

Other Income

Total

 5,000.00 

 5,000.00 

-

-

20. Cost of Materials Consumed

Particulars

Opening Stock

Add : Purchases

Total

Deduct : Closing Stock

Cost of materials consumed

 23,51,16,726.00 

 2,04,70,59,632.40 

 2,28,21,76,358.40 

 87,96,98,780.00 

 1,40,24,77,578.40 

 38,96,93,695.00 

 1,29,32,08,945.88 

 1,68,29,02,640.88 

 23,51,16,726.00 

 1,44,77,85,914.88 
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"Year ended
31st March, 2017"

“Year ended
31st March, 2016"

"Year ended
31st March, 2017"

“Year ended
31st March, 2016"

"Year ended
31st March, 2017"

“Year ended
31st March, 2016"
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

21. Purchase of Traded Goods

Particulars

Rice

Total

22. Change in Inventories of Finished Goods and Traded Goods

Particulars

Finished Goods

Opening Stock

Deduct : Closing Stock

Traded Goods

Opening Stock

Deduct : Closing Stock

(Increase) / Decrease in stocks

23. Employee Benefit Expense

Particulars

Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Contributions to -

(i) Provident fund

(ii) E.S.I.

Total

24. Finance Costs

Particulars

Interest expenses

Bank Charges

Total

25. Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Particulars

Depreciation on Tangible Assets

Total

 4,32,38,43,336.55 

 4,32,38,43,336.55 

 2,06,04,357.00 

 9,37,310.00 

 2,32,461.00 

 2,17,74,128.00 

 1,74,18,296.00 

 6,18,464.00 

 1,02,343.00 

 1,81,39,103.00 

 8,16,11,795.78 

 95,84,233.02 

 9,11,96,028.80 

 1,92,79,304.13

 1,92,79,304.13 

 1,95,12,759.63

 1,95,12,759.63 
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“Year ended
31st March, 2016"

"Year ended
31st March, 2017"

“Year ended
31st March, 2016"

"Year ended
31st March, 2017"

“Year ended
31st March, 2016"

"Year ended
31st March, 2017"

 1,41,60,18,509.54 

 1,41,60,18,509.54 

 29,02,59,259.00 

 51,81,61,239.00 

 -22,79,01,980.00 

 10,26,42,775.00 

 61,24,90,667.00 

 -50,98,47,892.00 

 -73,77,49,872.00 

 24,55,71,670.00 

 29,02,59,259.00 

 -4,46,87,589.00 

 26,64,59,480.00 

 10,26,42,775.00 

 16,38,16,705.00 

 11,91,29,116.00 

 8,54,46,028.97 

 1,27,68,420.65 

 9,82,14,449.62 

“Year ended
31st March, 2016"

"Year ended
31st March, 2017"

“Year ended
31st March, 2016"

"Year ended
31st March, 2017"
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

26. Other Expenses

Particulars

Power and Fuel

Repairs to Machinery

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts

Electric Repairs

Repairs to Building

Rent

Export Promotion Expenses

Rates and Taxes

Insurance

Freight, Transport and Delivery

Shipping & Forwarding

Packing Expenses

Rebate & Discounts

Travelling Expenses

Entertainment Expenses

Conveyance Expenses

Printing & Stationery

Postage & Courier

Advertisement

Payment to auditor (Refer details below)

Professional Charges

Commission

Telephone Expenses

Vehicles Running Expenses

Income Tax / Wealth Tax

Loss on sale of tangible assets

Other Expenses (CSR)

Miscellaneous Expenses

Total

 6,85,14,172.00 

 1,35,45,565.18 

 53,54,670.09 

 16,71,301.77 

 12,15,796.00 

 49,17,788.86 

 -   

 6,50,66,794.50 

 41,87,287.25 

 13,01,75,161.04 

 23,40,99,945.16 

 13,89,85,894.13 

 21,68,088.71 

 36,74,154.00 

 2,54,700.00 

 2,87,745.00 

 2,23,186.00 

 12,50,031.00 

 50,975.00 

 92,000.00 

 17,63,466.00 

 1,78,40,869.00 

 4,23,233.00 

 10,36,195.44 

 1,80,488.00 

 4,12,471.87 

 12,00,000.00 

 4,08,292.81 

 69,90,00,271.81 

 6,04,51,961.00 

 1,03,12,056.13 

 48,14,200.48 

 13,92,374.97 

 4,68,973.00 

 30,10,282.00 

 21,53,788.00 

 4,09,50,024.00 

 34,72,929.25 

 9,22,81,122.30 

 11,72,27,557.09 

 6,01,71,556.22 

 26,77,965.84 

 15,71,700.00 

 2,15,411.00 

 2,15,100.00 

 1,79,736.00 

 5,56,190.00 

 2,58,657.00 

 75,000.00 

 3,77,359.00 

 92,24,675.00 

 3,85,979.00 

 6,00,565.00 

 -   

 -   

 12,00,000.00 

 1,75,665.00 

 41,44,20,827.28 

Payment to auditor

Particulars

As auditor:

Audit Fee

Tax Audit Fee

Other matters (Certificates, Tax etc.)

Total

 50,000.00 

 20,000.00 

 22,000.00 

 92,000.00 

 50,000.00 

 15,000.00 

 10,000.00 

 75,000.00 
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“Year ended
31st March, 2016"

"Year ended
31st March, 2017"

“Year ended
31st March, 2016"

"Year ended
31st March, 2017"
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GRM

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

27. Computation of Earning per Equity Shar

Particulars

(I) Basic

(a) (i) Number of Equity Shares at the beginning

          of the year

     (ii) Number of Equity Shares issued during

          the period

     (iii) Number of Equity Shares at the end of

           the period

     (iv) Weighted average number of Equity

           Shares outstanding during the period

     (v) Face Value of each Equity Share `

(b) Profit after tax attributable to Equity Share-

     holders:

     Profit for the period

(c) Basic Earning per share [(b)/(a)(iv)] - `

(II) Diluted

(a) Dilutive Potential Equity Shares

(b) Diluted Earning per Share [same as I (c) above]

28. Earnings in Foreign Currency (accrual basis)

"As at
31st March 2017"

"As at
31st March 2016"

Particulars

Revenue from Export of Goods 

Total

 5,34,56,23,760.71 

 5,34,56,23,760.71 

 3,00,54,52,034.67 

 3,00,54,52,034.67 

"Year ended
31st March, 2017"

“Year ended
31st March, 2016"

 36,89,500.00 

 Nil 

 36,89,500.00 

 36,89,500.00 

 10.00 

 5,58,68,351.89 

 15.14 

 -   

 15.14 

 36,89,500.00 

 Nil 

 36,89,500.00 

 36,89,500.00 

 10.00 

 2,05,11,875.11 

 5.56 

 -   

 5.56 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017
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29. Quantitative information:-
Stock, production, purchase and turnover (Quantities in Qtls. and Values in Rupees)

Current Year Previous YearParticulars

Opening Stock
Rice 1,22,040.260 38,78,60,931.00 1,26,326.780 50,51,98,378.00
Paddy 1,22,754.720  22,73,41,741.00 1,40,463.650 38,34,65,765.00
Rice Bran 2,426.690  24,77,653.00 4,252.313 42,69,322.00
Packing Materials - 77,74,985.00 - 62,27,930.00
Others - 25,63,450.00 - 25,63,450.00

Total  62,80,18,760.00 90,17,24,845.00

Production/Purchase
Rice (Produced) 3,71,918.000 - 3,83,323.000 -
Rice (Purchased) 9,54,936.215   4,32,38,43,336.55 3,72,911.350 1,41,60,18,509.54
Paddy (Purchased) 7,71,547.030 1,92,26,41,411.80 5,70,564.460 1,22,13,01,237.83

Sales
Rice 11,45,320.379 5,82,49,40,352.55 7,60,126.776 3,48,56,72,641.69

Raw Materials Consumed
Paddy (Milled) 5,71,896.040 - 5,88,273.390 -
Closing Stock
Rice 3,03,015.096 1,12,51,47,726.00 1,22,040.260 38,78,60,931.00
Paddy 3,22,405.710 86,40,47,303.00 1,22,754.720 22,73,41,741.00
Rice Bran 2,814.100 29,40,730.00 2,426.690 24,77,653.00
Packing Materials - 1,56,51,477.00 - 77,74,985.00
Others - 25,63,450.00 - 25,63,450.00

Total 2,01,03,50,686.00 62,80,18,760.00

Shortages :
Rice 559.000 - 394.094 -
Paddy - - - -

Quantity Value Quantity Value
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017

30. Related party disclosures pursuant to Accounting Standard 18 prescribed under the Act.

a. Loans taken and repayment thereof

Key management

personnel or their 

relatives:

Hukam Chand Garg  6,01,50,000         5,66,99,669   58,88,866     5,48,39,123

Rohit Garg  6,28,75,390         4,74,03,647   25,15,315     2,11,15,221

Atul Garg  5,10,00,000         4,93,57,028      15,56,508     1,33,17,564

Companies in which
directors or their
relatives are interested:

Alfa Technobuild Pvt. Ltd. 1,30,00,000 1,40,79,958 32,79,196 4,65,44,687

HA Buildtech Pvt. Ltd. 1,05,50,000 1,41,14,506   17,13,879       2,43,03,746

Paras Infraprojects Pvt. Ltd. 6,00,000     9,93,712   47,10,183     6,27,74,136

Prestige Infraprojects Pvt. Ltd. 1,70,00,000 1,67,62,741 28,45,642     4,08,68,115

Samarth Technobuild Pvt. Ltd. 5,25,51,500  2,62,91,730   53,04,417     7,22,65,168

Eros Agro & Farms Pvt. Ltd. 1,01,00,000 11,07,778   48,39,574     7,38,22,401

Rohit Buildtech Pvt. Ltd. 20,00,000 9,66,273   29,14,205     3,88,80,860

Shine Technobuild Pvt. Ltd.         1,24,77,850   81,38,350   13,28,810     2,60,63,699

b. Remuneration to key managerial personnel

Mr. Hukam Chand Garg (Managing Direcor)      21,60,000 25,80,000

Mr. Rohit Garg (Whole time Director) 19,20,000  21,60,000

Mr. Atul Garg (Whole time Director)  19,20,000 21,60,000

Mr. Ratan Lal Mittal (CFO)  3,00,000 3,00,000

Mr. Vijay Kumar Dwivedi (Company Secretary) - 2,52,000

Ms. Tanushree Aggarwal (Company Secretary)   60,000 -

Total 63,60,000 74,52,000

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Year ended 
31st March, 2016

Particulars

Interest Amount owed by
Particulars Loans taken         Repayment       Accrued the parties
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Hukam Chand Garg 6,00,000 6,00,000

Rohit Garg 2,70,000 2,70,000

Hukam Chand Garg HUF 4,50,000 4,50,000

Jugpati Devi 6,00,000 6,00,000

Total 19,20,000 19,20,000

31. No information has been received by the Company from the creditors whether they are covered under 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017 

c. Rent to key management personnel or their relatives

Year ended
31st March, 2017

Year ended 
31st March, 2016

Particulars

For Vishal Malhotra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012750N

(CA. Mitesh Malhotra)
Partner
Membership No. 504338
Delhi
30th May, 2017 

 Hukam Chand Garg
Managing Director

DIN:  00673276

Rohit Garg
Whole-time-Director

DIN : 00673304

Signature to Note 1 to 31
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Regd. Folio No. / DP ID - Client ID  : ____________________________________

Name & Address of First/Sole Shareholder  : ____________________________________

No. of Shares held  : ____________________________________

                                                                                                                   __________________
                                                                                                                            Signature of Member/Proxy

Notes:
a) Only Member/Proxy can attend the meeting. No minors would be allowed at the meeting. 
b) Member / Proxy wish to attend the meeting must bring this attendance slip to the meeting and           

handover at the entrance duly filled in and signed

             ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

GRM OVERSEAS LIMITED

 ATTENDANCE SLIP

 -----------------------------------------------------------------TEAR HERE--------------------------------------------------------------

EVEN (e-voting Event No.) User ID Password/PIN No. of Shares

I hereby record my presence at the 23rd Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, the 
28th Day of September, 2017 at 10.30 A.M. at MH One Resort Hotel Bakoli Alipur, Main G.T. karnal Road Delhi-
110036
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Route Map of MH One Resort Hotel Bakoli Alipur, Main G.T. Karnal Road, Delhi-110036
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